
Managed by: Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 
550 W. Eisenhower Boulevard, Loveland, CO 80537 

Phone: 970-669-3611 | FAX: 970-669-3612 
Email: KINMDadmin@PCGI.Com 

KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1-10 
www.kinstonmd.live 

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING AND AGENDA 

Board of Directors Office  Term Expiration 
VACANT             Director May 2027 
Tim DePeder           Vice President May 2025  
Josh Kane Treasurer & Assistant Secretary May 2025 
Kim Perry Secretary May 2025 
Brad Lenz Assistant Secretary & Assistant Treasurer May 2027 

DATE: June 8, 2023 (Thursday) 
TIME: 1:00 P.M.   
PLACE:  MS Teams 

Click here to join the meeting (Please press the control key and click to access hyperlink) 
https://tinyurl.com/yc3jzw6m (This link can be copied into your web browser) 
Call In: +1 720-721-3140; Conference ID: 230 336 235# 

I. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS
A. Call to Order.
B. Declaration of Quorum/Director Qualifications/Disclosure of any potential Conflicts of Interest.
C. Consider Election of Officers.
D. Approval of Agenda. (Pages 1-2)
E. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes per

speaker.
F. Director Comments.

II. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Approval of Minutes – March 9, 2023, Regular Meeting Minutes. (Pages 3-6)
B. Ratification of Payables. (Pages 7-19)
C. Ratification of Contract Modifications. (Pages 20-21)
D. Review and Consider Unaudited Financial Statements for the period ending March 31, 2023.

(Pages 22-36)

III. DISTRICT MANAGER ITEMS
A. District Managers’ Report. (Pages 37-38)
B. Consider Approval of ChargePoint Customer Charging Rates.

IV. CAPITAL INFRASTRUCTURE ITEMS
A. District Capital Infrastructure Report and District Project Manager Update. (Pages 39-44)
B. Capital Fund Summary and Capital Needs Assessment Review. (To Be Distributed Under

Separate Cover)
C. Budget Approval and Contracting. (To Be Distributed Under Separate Cover)

i. Millennium East 15th Subdivision Phase 2 Public Infrastructure (CFS #12).
1. Present Bid Summary Memorandum for Public Infrastructure Improvements.

1

mailto:KINMDadmin@PCGI.Com
http://www.kinston-metro-district.com/
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NTYzMTM0Y2ItZjczNi00YTNjLTgxZjAtNzdlNGRkYmQ4NTVk%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2295d90e40-ea92-4b9b-bab0-f6f9c6fe1c1d%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b4314c33-d939-4b6d-b1f9-ceca53d6a304%22%7d
https://tinyurl.com/yc3jzw6m
tel:+1%20720-721-3140,,417260594#%20


Kinston Metropolitan District Nos. 1-10 
June 8, 2023 
Page 2 

Managed by: Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 
550 W. Eisenhower Boulevard, Loveland, CO 80537 

Phone: 970-669-3611 | FAX: 970-669-3612 
Email: KINMDadmin@PCGI.com 

2. Consider Approval of Construction with TBD ($TBD).
3. Consider Approval of Work Order 2023-01 with MRES for District Project

Management Services ($TBD).
4. Consider Approval of Project Budget ($626,797.00).

V. FINANCIAL ITEMS
A. Finance Manager’s Report.
B. Public Hearing regarding the Proposed Amended 2023 Budgets.

i. Consider Adoption of Amended 2023 Budget; Consider Approval of Resolution to Adopt 
Budget; and Appropriate Sums of Money (if needed).

C. O&M Fees Update and Presentation. (Pages 45-54)

VI. LEGAL ITEMS
A. Consideration and Approval of Access and Maintenance Easement Agreement. (Pages 55-62)
B. Ratification of Richmond Alley Phase 2 Lot Development Agreement. (Pages 63-120)
C. Consideration and Approval of Consent to Supplement to Dispute Resolution Covenant with 

Centerra East Development, Inc. (Pages 121-125)
D. Consideration and Approval of Acceptance of Quitclaim Deed Conveyance of Certain Outlots in 

Millennium East 14th, 15th, and 16th Subdivisions. (Pages 126-127)
E. Consideration and Approval of Resolution Approving Parking Rules. (To Be Distributed Under 

Separate Cover)
F. Consideration and Approval of Resolution Regarding District Facilities, and in connection 

therewith, Rules for Use of Park Facilities, Application for First Amendment Demonstration 
Permit, and Event License Agreement. (Pages 128-143)

VII. ITEMS FROM DIRECTORS

VIII. OTHER ITEMS

IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION – Pursuant to § 24-6-402(4)(b), C.R.S. for the purpose of receiving legal 
advice on specific legal questions.

X. ADJOURNMENT

***The next Regular Meeting is July 13, 2023*** 

2

mailto:KINMDadmin@PCGI.com


RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 
Kinston Metropolitan Districts Nos. 1-10 

Meeting Minutes 2023-03-09 

1 

MINUTES OF THE COORDINATED 
REGULAR MEETING OF 

KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1-10 

HELD 
March 9, 2023 

The Coordinated Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors (collectively, “Boards”) of The 
Kinston Metropolitan District Nos. 1-10 (collectively, “Districts”) was held via teleconference, on 
Thursday, March 9, 2023, at 1:00 p.m.  

ATTENDANCE Directors in Attendance: 
Abby Kirkbride, President 
Josh Kane, Treasurer & Assistant Secretary 
Kim Perry, Secretary 
Brad Lenz, Assistant Secretary & Assistant Treasurer 

Directors Absent but Excused: 
Tim DePeder, Vice President 

Also in Attendance: 
Alan Pogue; Icenogle Seaver Pogue, P.C.  
Samantha Romero, Lindsey Mercier, and Jeff Breidenbach; 
McWhinney 
Sarah Bromley, Bryan Newby, Nicole Wing, Brendan Campbell, Irene 
Buenavista, Casey Milligan, Dillon Gamber, Wendy McFarland, 
Christy McCutchen, and Shadrack Too; Pinnacle Consulting Group, 
Inc.  
__________ 

CALL MEETING
TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order at 1:02 p.m. by Ms. Bromley, noting that 
a quorum was present. The Directors in attendance confirmed their 
qualifications to serve. 
__________ 

COMBINED
MEETING 

The Districts are meeting in a combined Board meeting. Unless 
otherwise noted, the matters set forth below shall be deemed to be the 
actions of the Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1, with concurrence by 
the Kinston Metropolitan Districts 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9 and 10. 
__________ 

3



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 
   

  
  Kinston Metropolitan Districts Nos. 1-10 

Meeting Minutes 2023-03-09 
 

2 

CONFLICT OF 
INTEREST 
DISCLOSURE 

Alan Pogue, legal counsel, stated that notices of potential conflicts of 
interest for all Board Members were filed with the Colorado Secretary of 
State’s Office, disclosing potential conflicts as Board Members are 
employees of McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc. and Land Asset 
Strategies, which are associated with the primary landowners and 
developer within the Districts. Mr. Pogue advised the Boards that 
pursuant to Colorado law, certain disclosures by the Board Members 
might be required prior to taking official action at a meeting. The Boards 
reviewed the agenda for the meeting, following which each Board 
Member present confirmed the contents of the written disclosures 
previously made stating the fact and summary nature of any matters as 
required under Colorado law to permit official action to be taken at the 
meeting. Additionally, the Boards determined that the participation of the 
members present was necessary to obtain a quorum or otherwise enable 
the Boards to act.  
__________ 
 

APPROVAL OF 
AGENDA 
 
 
 

The Boards reviewed the agenda. Upon motion duly made by Director 
Kane, seconded by Director Perry and, upon vote, it was unanimously 
 
 RESOLVED to approve the agenda, as presented. 
__________ 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT There were no public present and no comments received. 
__________ 
 

CONSENT AGENDA  The Boards considered the following consent agenda items: 
 

A. Approval of December 5, 2022, Special Board Meeting 
Minutes and December 8, 2022, Regular Meeting Minutes. 

B. Ratification of Payables. 
C. Ratification of Contract Modifications. 
D. Unaudited Financial Statements for the period ending 

December 31, 2022. 
 

Upon motion duly made by Director Kirkbride, seconded by Director 
Lenz and, upon vote, it was unanimously 
 
 RESOLVED to ratify and approve the items above, as presented. 
__________ 
 

CAPITAL 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
ITEMS 

District Capital Infrastructure Report and District Project Manager 
Update: Mr. Milligan reviewed the District Capital Infrastructure Report 
and Mr. Breidenbach provided a District Project Manager update to the 
Boards and answered questions.  

4



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 
   

  
  Kinston Metropolitan Districts Nos. 1-10 

Meeting Minutes 2023-03-09 
 

3 

        
 
 
 
 

Capital Fund Summary: Mr. Milligan and Mr. Breidenbach reviewed the 
Capital Fund Summary with the Boards and answered questions.  
__________ 
 

FINANCIAL ITEMS  Finance Manager’s Report: Ms. Buenavista presented the Finance 
Manager’s Report to the Boards and answered questions.  
 
2022 Audit Exemptions for District Nos. 2-4 and District Nos. 6-10:  Ms. 
Buenavista presented the 2022 Audit Exemptions for District Nos. 2-4 
and District Nos. 6-10 to the Boards and answered questions. Upon 
motion duly made by Director Kane, seconded by Director Kirkbride, 
and upon vote, it was unanimously 
 
 RESOLVED to approve the 2022 Audit Exemptions for District 
Nos. 2-4 and District Nos. 6-10, as presented. 
 
O&M Fees Update: Mr. Campbell provided an update on District O&M 
Fees to the Boards and answered questions. 
 
Bond Update: Mr. Campbell provided a Bond Update to the Boards and 
answered questions. 
__________ 
 

LEGAL ITEMS There were no Legal Items brought before the Boards. 
__________ 
 

DISTRICT MANAGER 
ITEMS 
 

Manager’s Report: Ms. Bromley and Mr. Gamber presented the 
Manager’s Report to the Boards and answered questions.  
__________ 
 

ITEMS FROM 
DIRECTORS 
 

There were no Items from Directors brought before the Boards. 
__________ 
 

OTHER 
MATTERS 
 

There were no other matters brought before the Boards. 
__________ 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to come before the Boards, the meeting 
was adjourned at 1:56 p.m.  
__________ 
 

5



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 
   

  
  Kinston Metropolitan Districts Nos. 1-10 

Meeting Minutes 2023-03-09 
 

4 

 
       The foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy  

of the minutes of the above-referenced meeting. 
 

      Respectfully Submitted, 
 
      ___________________________________  
      Nicole Wing, Secretary for the Meeting 

6



 Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1
 Check Detail

 March 3 through June 1, 2023

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

Liability Check 04/21/2023 QuickBooks Payroll Service 1-11000 · Cash - Checking

66000 · Payroll Expenses 7.00

QuickBooks Payroll Service 2110 · Direct Deposit Liabilities 738.80

TOTAL 745.80

Check 04/30/2023 1-11000 · Cash - Checking

1-51120 · Office, Dues & Other 10.00

TOTAL 10.00

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 03/07/2023 Bill.com 1-11000 · Cash - Checking

Bill 23038604116 02/05/2023 1-51120 · Office, Dues & Other 129.67

TOTAL 129.67

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 03/28/2023 City of Loveland 1-11000 · Cash - Checking

Bill 0185312-059154 02.23 02/28/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 61.58

TOTAL 61.58

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 03/28/2023 City of Loveland 1-11000 · Cash - Checking

Bill 0185312-054470 02.23 02/28/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 552.49

TOTAL 552.49

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 03/28/2023 City of Loveland 1-11000 · Cash - Checking

Bill 0185312-056674 02.23 02/28/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 61.58

TOTAL 61.58

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 03/28/2023 City of Loveland 1-11000 · Cash - Checking

Bill 0185312-060308 02.23 02/28/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 31.66

TOTAL 31.66

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 03/30/2023 City of Loveland 1-11000 · Cash - Checking

Bill 056668 02.23 02/28/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 78.12

TOTAL 78.12

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 04/10/2023 Bill.com 1-11000 · Cash - Checking

Bill 23048979083 03/05/2023 1-51120 · Office, Dues & Other 129.40

TOTAL 129.40

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 04/11/2023 City of Loveland 1-11000 · Cash - Checking

Bill 0185312-059062 02.23 02/27/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 20.00

TOTAL 20.00

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 04/27/2023 City of Loveland 1-11000 · Cash - Checking

Bill 059154 03.23 03/31/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 61.58

TOTAL 61.58

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 04/27/2023 City of Loveland 1-11000 · Cash - Checking

Bill 056674 03.23 03/31/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 61.58

TOTAL 61.58

7



 Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1
 Check Detail

 March 3 through June 1, 2023

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

 

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 04/27/2023 City of Loveland 1-11000 · Cash - Checking

 

Bill 060308 03.23 03/31/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 31.53

TOTAL 31.53

 

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 04/27/2023 City of Loveland 1-11000 · Cash - Checking

 

Bill 059062 03.23 03/31/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 24.68

TOTAL 24.68

 

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 04/27/2023 City of Loveland 1-11000 · Cash - Checking

 

Bill 056668 03.23 03/31/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 83.68

TOTAL 83.68

 

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 04/27/2023 City of Loveland 1-11000 · Cash - Checking

 

Bill 054470 03.23 03/31/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 573.50

TOTAL 573.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 04/27/2023 City of Loveland 1-11000 · Cash - Checking

 

Bill 056670 03.23 04/10/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 16.70

TOTAL 16.70

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/16/2023 Icenogle Seaver Pogue, P.C. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 23019 01/31/2023 1-51050 · Election Costs 171.00

1-51110 · Legal Services 3,190.00

TOTAL 3,361.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/16/2023 Custom Fence & Supply 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 314343 01/31/2023 3-55101 · Project-Direct 105,849.00

TOTAL 105,849.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/16/2023 McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 361191 11/30/2022 1-51080 · Facilities Management 134.85

TOTAL 134.85

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/16/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24012 01/31/2023 1-51040 · District Management 4,340.00

1-51080 · Facilities Management 1,435.00

1-51000 · Accounting 5,810.00

1-51120 · Office, Dues & Other 44.44

TOTAL 11,629.44

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/16/2023 Environmental Designs, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 161299 01/09/2023 1-52400 · Storm Water Facilities 125.00

TOTAL 125.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 MSK Consulting LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 0000814 01/31/2023 3-57004 · Engineering 2,470.00

TOTAL 2,470.00

8



 Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1
 Check Detail

 March 3 through June 1, 2023

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 Norris Design, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 01-78004 12/31/2022 3-55604 · Engineering 290.00

TOTAL 290.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 23957 01/31/2023 3-55103 · Project Administration 1,462.50

TOTAL 1,462.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 CMS Environmental Solutions, LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 146081 01/31/2023 3-55101 · Project-Direct 395.00

TOTAL 395.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 23956 01/31/2023 3-57003 · Project Administration 350.00

TOTAL 350.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 23959 01/31/2023 3-55903 · Project Administration 225.00

TOTAL 225.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 DTJ Design, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 65560 01/31/2023 3-55904 · Engineering 1,513.19

TOTAL 1,513.19

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 Coyote Ridge Construction LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill App 13 01/31/2023 3-55601 · Project-Direct 159,840.35

TOTAL 159,840.35

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 Kumar & Associates 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 218312 01/31/2023 3-55204 · Engineering 6,780.00

TOTAL 6,780.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 23958 01/31/2023 3-55303 · Project Administration 1,312.50

TOTAL 1,312.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 23954 01/31/2023 3-55203 · Project Administration 840.00

TOTAL 840.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 Coyote Ridge Construction LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill App 7 01/31/2023 3-55201 · Project-Direct 47,067.97

TOTAL 47,067.97

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 DTJ Design, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 65600 01/26/2023 3-55104 · Engineering 1,545.68

TOTAL 1,545.68

9



 Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1
 Check Detail

 March 3 through June 1, 2023

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 SWPPP Colorado, LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 6466 12/31/2022 3-55101 · Project-Direct 448.05

TOTAL 448.05

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 23953 01/31/2023 3-55603 · Project Administration 1,237.50

TOTAL 1,237.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 SWPPP Colorado, LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 6503 12/31/2022 3-55101 · Project-Direct 1,655.00

TOTAL 1,655.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 Merrick 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 221476 12/31/2022 3-51060 · Engineering 5,447.75

TOTAL 5,447.75

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 GE Construction, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 3971 01/31/2023 3-55201 · Project-Direct 37,372.50

TOTAL 37,372.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 Coyote Ridge Construction LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill App 7 01/31/2023 3-55801 · Project-Direct 461,408.63

TOTAL 461,408.63

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 Bath, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill SINV-000913 01/31/2023 3-55301 · Project-Direct 1,686.08

TOTAL 1,686.08

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 Norris Design, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 01-78543 12/31/2022 3-57004 · Engineering 4,683.75

TOTAL 4,683.75

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 23955 01/31/2023 3-55803 · Project Administration 1,715.00

TOTAL 1,715.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 23952 01/31/2023 3-51040 · District Management, Capital 1,237.50

TOTAL 1,237.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/17/2023 Chalona Studios LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 0029 12/31/2022 3-55102 · Project Management 5,062.50

TOTAL 5,062.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/29/2023 Icenogle Seaver Pogue, P.C. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 23203 02/28/2023 1-51050 · Election Costs 416.24

1-51110 · Legal Services 4,621.50

TOTAL 5,037.74

10



 Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1
 Check Detail

 March 3 through June 1, 2023

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/29/2023 Kinston Hub, LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 370080 12/09/2022 1-51400 · Utilities 76.20

1-51400 · Utilities 71.04

TOTAL 147.24

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 03/29/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24160 02/28/2023 1-51040 · District Management 3,535.00

1-51080 · Facilities Management 1,225.00

1-51000 · Accounting 6,090.00

1-51120 · Office, Dues & Other 21.29

TOTAL 10,871.29

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/05/2023 Environmental Designs, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 161185 12/30/2022 1-52400 · Storm Water Facilities 477.50

TOTAL 477.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 DTJ Design, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 65792 01/31/2023 3-55904 · Engineering 3,000.00

TOTAL 3,000.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 Norris Design, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 01-79058 01/31/2023 3-57004 · Engineering 1,100.00

TOTAL 1,100.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 Earth Engineering Consultants, LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 1212071.2 02/28/2023 3-55604 · Engineering 500.00

TOTAL 500.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24100 02/28/2023 3-57003 · Project Administration 210.00

TOTAL 210.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 369565 01/31/2023 3-55202 · Project Management 2,860.20

TOTAL 2,860.20

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 Prairie Mountain Media, LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 1955443 02/28/2023 3-55305 · Permits, Fees and Other 51.50

TOTAL 51.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 Merrick 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 222663 02/28/2023 3-51060 · Engineering 2,415.00

TOTAL 2,415.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24097 02/28/2023 3-55203 · Project Administration 350.00

TOTAL 350.00

11



 Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1
 Check Detail

 March 3 through June 1, 2023

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 374250 02/28/2023 3-55202 · Project Management 2,860.20

TOTAL 2,860.20

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 Coyote Ridge Construction LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill App 14 02/28/2023 3-55601 · Project-Direct 125,690.16

1-24040 · Retainage Payable 6,982.79

TOTAL 132,672.95

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24099 02/28/2023 3-56003 · Project Administration 420.00

TOTAL 420.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 CMS Environmental Solutions, LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 147561 02/28/2023 3-55101 · Project-Direct 395.00

TOTAL 395.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24096 02/28/2023 3-55603 · Project Administration 675.00

TOTAL 675.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 San Engineering LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 3644 03/31/2023 3-55604 · Engineering 998.42

TOTAL 998.42

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24095 02/28/2023 3-51040 · District Management, Capital 1,012.50

TOTAL 1,012.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24103 02/28/2023 3-55903 · Project Administration 150.00

TOTAL 150.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 DTJ Design, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 65649 01/31/2023 3-56004 · Engineering 38.75

TOTAL 38.75

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 Bath, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill SINV-000970 02/28/2023 3-55301 · Project-Direct 1,686.08

TOTAL 1,686.08

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24102 02/28/2023 3-55303 · Project Administration 262.50

TOTAL 262.50

12



 Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1
 Check Detail

 March 3 through June 1, 2023

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24101 02/28/2023 3-55103 · Project Administration 900.00

TOTAL 900.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 369566 01/31/2023 3-57002 · Project Management 29,562.70

TOTAL 29,562.70

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 Rock and Co 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 22105-9 03/31/2023 3-55101 · Project-Direct 6,946.16

TOTAL 6,946.16

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 374235 01/31/2023 3-51170 · Project Infrastructure 517.00

TOTAL 517.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 374241 02/28/2023 3-51170 · Project Infrastructure 661.50

TOTAL 661.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24098 02/28/2023 3-55803 · Project Administration 805.00

TOTAL 805.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 Coyote Ridge Construction LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill App 8 02/28/2023 3-55801 · Project-Direct 177,915.62

TOTAL 177,915.62

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 Norris Design, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 01-78955 01/31/2023 3-55604 · Engineering 625.00

TOTAL 625.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/10/2023 King Surveyors LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 418822 02/28/2023 3-55804 · Engineering 6,921.75

TOTAL 6,921.75

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/25/2023 Rock and Co 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 22105-R 03/31/2023 1-24040 · Retainage Payable 30,889.00

TOTAL 30,889.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/25/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24299 03/31/2023 1-51040 · District Management 7,315.00

1-51080 · Facilities Management 1,610.00

1-51000 · Accounting 5,670.00

1-51120 · Office, Dues & Other 247.66

TOTAL 14,842.66

13



 Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1
 Check Detail

 March 3 through June 1, 2023

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/25/2023 Kinston Hub, LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 375498 03/23/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 36.44

TOTAL 36.44

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/25/2023 Icenogle Seaver Pogue, P.C. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 23286 03/31/2023 1-51050 · Election Costs 358.35

1-51110 · Legal Services 5,158.00

TOTAL 5,516.35

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/03/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24240 03/31/2023 3-55203 · Project Administration 595.00

TOTAL 595.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/03/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24243 03/31/2023 3-55303 · Project Administration 1,087.50

TOTAL 1,087.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/03/2023 Bath, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill SINV-001055 03/31/2023 3-55301 · Project-Direct 1,686.08

TOTAL 1,686.08

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/03/2023 King Surveyors LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 418605 01/31/2023 3-55804 · Engineering 2,321.00

TOTAL 2,321.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/03/2023 Kumar & Associates 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 219368 03/31/2023 3-55804 · Engineering 6,101.25

TOTAL 6,101.25

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/03/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24239 03/31/2023 3-55603 · Project Administration 787.50

TOTAL 787.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/03/2023 King Surveyors LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 418592 01/25/2023 3-55204 · Engineering 833.00

TOTAL 833.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/03/2023 Norris Design, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 01-79491 02/28/2023 3-57004 · Engineering 230.00

TOTAL 230.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/03/2023 San Engineering LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 3680 03/31/2023 3-55604 · Engineering 4,953.06

TOTAL 4,953.06

14



 Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1
 Check Detail

 March 3 through June 1, 2023

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/03/2023 Earth Engineering Consultants, LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 1234008.1 03/31/2023 3-55604 · Engineering 1,396.00

TOTAL 1,396.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/03/2023 McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 379170 03/31/2023 3-55202 · Project Management 2,860.20

TOTAL 2,860.20

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/03/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24241 03/31/2023 3-57003 · Project Administration 105.00

TOTAL 105.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/03/2023 McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 379176 03/31/2023 3-51170 · Project Infrastructure 653.50

TOTAL 653.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/11/2023 Kinston Hub, LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 374341 02/28/2023 1-52700 · Amenities 134.85

1-51400 · Utilities 36.44

TOTAL 171.29

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/24/2023 Prairie Mountain Media, LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 1968282 04/06/2023 3-55105 · Permits, Fees and Other 56.50

TOTAL 56.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/24/2023 Da Vinci Sign Systems Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 20324 03/14/2023 3-55101 · Project-Direct 235,162.64

TOTAL 235,162.64

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/24/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24242 03/31/2023 3-55103 · Project Administration 1,687.50

TOTAL 1,687.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/24/2023 Bath, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill SINV-001065 03/31/2023 3-55301 · Project-Direct 4,750.00

TOTAL 4,750.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/24/2023 Precision Pavement Marking Co 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 350587 03/13/2023 3-55101 · Project-Direct 350.00

TOTAL 350.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/24/2023 Waterwise Land & Waterscapes Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 05-723-4384 04/03/2023 3-55101 · Project-Direct 6,796.49

TOTAL 6,796.49

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/24/2023 Coyote Ridge Construction LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill App 15 03/31/2023 3-55601 · Project-Direct 430,535.19

TOTAL 430,535.19

15



 Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1
 Check Detail

 March 3 through June 1, 2023

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/24/2023 SWPPP Colorado, LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 6597 03/20/2023 3-55101 · Project-Direct 1,637.75

TOTAL 1,637.75

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/24/2023 CMS Environmental Solutions, LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 148962 04/01/2023 3-55101 · Project-Direct 395.00

TOTAL 395.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/24/2023 Ridgetop Engineering & Consulting 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 3713 04/04/2023 3-55104 · Engineering 1,727.50

TOTAL 1,727.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24387 04/15/2023 3-55803 · Project Administration 2,590.00

TOTAL 2,590.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 Norris Design, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 01-80610 04/15/2023 3-57004 · Engineering 1,517.50

TOTAL 1,517.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 CWC Consulting Group Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill Inv3197 04/15/2023 3-55804 · Engineering 1,670.50

TOTAL 1,670.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 Kumar & Associates 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 219578 04/15/2023 3-55804 · Engineering 6,127.50

TOTAL 6,127.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 CMS Environmental Solutions, LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 150301 04/15/2023 3-55101 · Project-Direct 395.00

TOTAL 395.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 CWC Consulting Group Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill Inv3200 04/15/2023 3-57004 · Engineering 9,512.90

TOTAL 9,512.90

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24389 04/15/2023 3-55303 · Project Administration 1,237.50

TOTAL 1,237.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24386 04/15/2023 3-55203 · Project Administration 3,500.00

TOTAL 3,500.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 Bath, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill SINV-001163 04/15/2023 3-55101 · Project-Direct 10,043.40

TOTAL 10,043.40

16



 Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1
 Check Detail

 March 3 through June 1, 2023

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 Custom Fence & Supply 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 314665 04/15/2023 3-55101 · Project-Direct 7,052.00

TOTAL 7,052.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24385 04/15/2023 3-55603 · Project Administration 1,012.50

TOTAL 1,012.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 Coyote Ridge Construction LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill Pay App 23 04/15/2023 3-55101 · Project-Direct 24,658.29

TOTAL 24,658.29

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 Prairie Mountain Media, LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 1970980 04/15/2023 3-55205 · Permits, Fees and Other 1.50

TOTAL 1.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 383950 04/15/2023 3-55202 · Project Management 2,860.20

TOTAL 2,860.20

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 CWC Consulting Group Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill Inv3199 04/15/2023 3-55604 · Engineering 1,427.50

TOTAL 1,427.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24388 04/15/2023 3-55803 · Project Administration 1,387.50

TOTAL 1,387.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 Bath, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill SINV-001146 04/15/2023 3-55101 · Project-Direct 1,686.08

TOTAL 1,686.08

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 Kumar & Associates 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 220137 04/15/2023 3-55804 · Engineering 4,128.75

TOTAL 4,128.75

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 CWC Consulting Group Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill Inv3198 04/15/2023 3-55204 · Engineering 1,950.00

TOTAL 1,950.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 383963 04/15/2023 3-51170 · Project Infrastructure 247.00

TOTAL 247.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24383 04/15/2023 3-51040 · District Management, Capital 1,537.50

TOTAL 1,537.50

17



 Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1
 Check Detail

 March 3 through June 1, 2023

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 San Engineering LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 3711 04/15/2023 3-55604 · Engineering 1,033.68

TOTAL 1,033.68

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 Kumar & Associates 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 219934 04/15/2023 3-55804 · Engineering 220.00

TOTAL 220.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24384 04/15/2023 3-55703 · Project Administration 980.00

TOTAL 980.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 Earth Engineering Consultants, LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 1234008.2 04/15/2023 3-55604 · Engineering 1,476.00

TOTAL 1,476.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 Merrick 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 224923 04/15/2023 3-51060 · Engineering 10,102.50

TOTAL 10,102.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/31/2023 Coyote Ridge Construction LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill Pay App 8 04/15/2023 3-55201 · Project-Direct 85,548.40

TOTAL 85,548.40

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 06/01/2023 Kinston Hub, LLC 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 379362 03/31/2023 1-51400 · Utilities 8.23

TOTAL 8.23

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 06/01/2023 Icenogle Seaver Pogue, P.C. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 23508 04/30/2023 1-51050 · Election Costs 227.41

1-51110 · Legal Services 11,985.75

TOTAL 12,213.16

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 06/01/2023 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 24452 04/30/2023 1-51040 · District Management 5,985.00

1-51080 · Facilities Management 1,225.00

1-51000 · Accounting 5,880.00

1-51120 · Office, Dues & Other 13.05

TOTAL 13,103.05

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 06/01/2023 Kinston Community Association, Inc 1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 46234-202303 04/30/2023 1-52600 · HOA Maintenance 2,783.75

TOTAL 2,783.75

18



 Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1
 Check Detail

 March 3 through June 1, 2023

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

 

Paycheck DD1060 04/24/2023 Abby L Kirkbride 1-11000 · Cash - Checking

 

1-51030 · Directors' Fees 200.00

66000 · Payroll Expenses 12.40

24000 · Payroll Liabilities -12.40

24000 · Payroll Liabilities -12.40

66000 · Payroll Expenses 2.90

24000 · Payroll Liabilities -2.90

24000 · Payroll Liabilities -2.90

2110 · Direct Deposit Liabilities -184.70

TOTAL 0.00

 

Paycheck DD1061 04/24/2023 Bradley D Lenz 1-11000 · Cash - Checking 0.00

 

1-51030 · Directors' Fees 200.00

66000 · Payroll Expenses 12.40

24000 · Payroll Liabilities -12.40

24000 · Payroll Liabilities -12.40

66000 · Payroll Expenses 2.90

24000 · Payroll Liabilities -2.90

24000 · Payroll Liabilities -2.90

2110 · Direct Deposit Liabilities -184.70

TOTAL 0.00

 

Paycheck DD1062 04/24/2023 Josh Kane 1-11000 · Cash - Checking 0.00

 

1-51030 · Directors' Fees 200.00

66000 · Payroll Expenses 12.40

24000 · Payroll Liabilities -12.40

24000 · Payroll Liabilities -12.40

66000 · Payroll Expenses 2.90

24000 · Payroll Liabilities -2.90

24000 · Payroll Liabilities -2.90

2110 · Direct Deposit Liabilities -184.70

TOTAL 0.00

 

Paycheck DD1063 04/24/2023 Kim Perry 1-11000 · Cash - Checking 0.00

 

1-51030 · Directors' Fees 200.00

66000 · Payroll Expenses 12.40

24000 · Payroll Liabilities -12.40

24000 · Payroll Liabilities -12.40

66000 · Payroll Expenses 2.90

24000 · Payroll Liabilities -2.90

24000 · Payroll Liabilities -2.90

2110 · Direct Deposit Liabilities -184.70

TOTAL 0.00

Total 2,233,041.18$    

19



Contract Modifications for Board Ratification

Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1

Kinston Millennium East 14th  (KIN-ME14)

Contractor:
Coyote Ridge Construction, LLC

Contract #:
Cnt-01151

Modification Amount:
$0.00

Modification Date:
5 /17/2023

Modification Description:
Change Order # 10

Modification Scope:
Extension of Final Completion Date from May 11, 2023 to July 19, 2023.

Contractor Signed Date:
5 /22/2023

District Signed Date:
5 /17/2023

Payment Method:
No Charge

Kinston Millennium East 15th  (KIN-ME15)

Contractor:
King Surveyors, LLC

Contract #:
Cnt-01154

Modification Amount:
$5,000.00

Modification Date:
5 /5 /2023

Modification Description:
CO1 to WO 2022-01

Modification Scope:
Re-staking Alllowance

Contractor Signed Date:
5 /5 /2023

District Signed Date:
5 /10/2023

Payment Method:
Time & Materials

Kinston O&M  (KIN-OM)

Contractor:
McWhinney Real Estate Services, Inc.

Contract #:
Cnt-00987

Modification Amount:
$12,500.00

Modification Date:
3 /21/2023

Modification Description:
WO 2023-01

Modification Scope:
Splash Pad Maintenance and Repair Services

Contractor Signed Date:
3 /21/2023

District Signed Date:
3 /21/2023

Payment Method:
Time & Materials

Kinston Phase 1 Landscaping  (KIN-PH1-LAND)

Contractor:
Bath, Inc

Contract #:
Cnt-01176

Modification Amount:
$10,346.91

Modification Date:
5 /12/2023

Modification Description:
Change Order 6

Modification Scope:
Move Irrigation Wires to Relocated Controller Location on Wild Millet

Contractor Signed Date:
5 /24/2023

District Signed Date:
5 /22/2023

Payment Method:
Unit Price

Printed:  5/26/2023 9:57:19 AM  Contract Modifications by Date Range  1/1/2023  to  5/26/2023

20



Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1

Kinston Welcome Center Park  (KIN-WCP)

Contractor:
Bath, Inc

Contract #:
Cnt-01176

Modification Amount:
$2,110.00

Modification Date:
5 /12/2023

Modification Description:
Change Order #7

Modification Scope:
Install 18"x18" Concrete Steppers at Welcome Center

Contractor Signed Date:

District Signed Date:
5 /22/2023

Payment Method:
Unit Price

Printed:  5/26/2023 9:57:19 AM  Contract Modifications by Date Range  1/1/2023  to  5/26/2023

21



22



KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 & 5
BALANCE SHEET

No. 1 No. 5 Total No. 1 No. 5 Total
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
12/31/2022 12/31/2022 12/31/2022 3/31/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023

Current Assets
Checking 198,428$       -$                   198,428$       209,680$       -$                   209,680$       
Colotrust 3,606             -                     3,606             5,391             -                     5,391             
Bond Funds -                     1,747,976      1,747,976      -                     1,766,294      1,766,294      
Capital Project Funds -                     10,409           10,409           -                     4,759             4,759             
Phase 1 Public Escrow -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Bridgewater Escrow 997,228         -                     997,228         638,406         -                     638,406         
Due from District No. 1 -                     2,334             2,334             -                     4,664             4,664             
Due from District No. 5 19,589           -                     19,589           19,589           -                     19,589           
Property Tax Receivable -                     256                256                -                     256                256                
Developer Advance Receivable 1,625,559      -                     1,625,559      945,050         -                     945,050         
Prepaid Expense 29,249           -                     29,249           -                     -                     -                     
Construction Deposits 333,458         333,458         333,458         333,458         
Service Fee Receivable 3                    -                     3                    1,160             -                     1,160             

Total Current Assets 3,207,121$    1,760,975$    4,968,096$    2,152,734$    1,775,973$    3,928,707$    

Long-Term Assets
Construction in Progress 27,600,491$  -$                   27,600,491$  27,600,491$  -$                   27,600,491$  
Total Long-Term Assets 27,600,491$  -$                   27,600,491$  27,600,491$  -$                   27,600,491$  

Total Assets 30,807,611$  1,760,975$    32,568,586$  29,753,225$  1,775,973$    31,529,198$  

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 2,227,524$    -$                   2,227,524$    1,127,172$    -$                   1,127,172$    
Payroll Liabilities 612                -                     612                -                 -                     -                     
Retainage Payable 584,949         -                     584,949         632,840         -                     632,840         
Due to District 1 -                     19,589           19,589           -                     19,589           19,589           
Due to District 5 2,334             -                     2,334             4,664             -                     4,664             
Service Fee Payable to District 1 -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Deferred Property Taxes -                     256                256                -                     256                256                

Total Current Liabilities 2,815,420$    19,845$         2,835,265$    1,764,676$    19,845$         1,784,521$    

Long-Term Liabilities
Bonds Payable -$                   23,900,000$  23,900,000$  -$                   23,900,000$  23,900,000$  
Operating Advance Payable 773,800         -                     773,800         808,067         -                     808,067         
Capital Advance Payable 5,567,750      -                     5,567,750      7,593,389      -                     7,593,389      
Capital Advance Interest Payable 67,760           -                     67,760           180,994         -                     180,994         

Total Long-Term Debt 6,341,550$    23,900,000$  30,241,550$  8,401,456$    23,900,000$  32,301,456$  

Total Liabilities 9,156,970$    23,919,845$  33,076,815$  10,166,132$  23,919,845$  34,085,977$  

Net Investment in Fixed Assets 21,258,940$  (23,900,000)$ (2,641,060)$   19,199,035$  (23,900,000)$ (4,700,965)$   
Fund Balance -                     

Nonspendable 29,249           -                     29,249           -                     -                     -                     
Restricted 317,831         1,741,130      2,058,961      383,483         1,756,128      2,139,611      
Unassigned 44,620           -                     44,620           4,575             -                     4,575             

Total Fund Equity 21,650,642$  (22,158,870)$ (508,228)$      19,587,093$  (22,143,872)$ (2,556,779)$   

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity 30,807,612$  1,760,975$    32,568,587$  29,753,225$  1,775,973$    31,529,198$  

=  =  =  =  =  =  

Assets

Liabilities

Fund Equity

Modified Accrual Budgetary Basis

Page 1

23



KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES WITH BUDGETS
GENERAL FUND

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (e-d)
2022 2023 2023 Actual Budget Variance

Unaudited Adopted Projected Through Through Through
Revenues Actual Budget Actual 3/31/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023

Operating Advances 333,343$       498,355$       398,594$       34,267$         97,354$            (63,087)$           
Service Fees District #2 318                 2,830              2,830              561                 705                   (144)                  
Service Fees District #3 12                   10                   10                   1                     1                       -                        
Service Fees District #4 37                   20                   20                   1                     1                       -                        
Service Fees District #5 197                 52                   52                   -                      -                        -                        
Service Fees District #9 13                   12                   12                   -                      -                        -                        
Service Fees District #10 2                     2                     2                     1                     1                       -                        
Other Income 264                 -                      184                 46                   -                        46                     

Total Revenues 334,185$       501,281$       401,704$       34,877$         98,062$            (63,185)$           

Expenditures
Operations and Maintenance

Storm Water Facilities 2,286$           1,000$           1,000$           125$               249$                 (124)$                
Amenities -                      12,500           12,500           135                 3,126                (2,991)               
Repairs and Maintenance -                      5,000              5,000              -                      1,251                (1,251)               
HOA Maintenance -                      100,000         100,000         29,200           29,200              -                        
Utilities 18,093           35,000           35,000           2,572              8,751                (6,179)               
Facilities Management 15,101           17,000           17,000           4,270              4,251                19                     

Administration:
Accounting and Finance 61,490           67,500           67,500           17,570           16,875              695                   
Audit 13,000           14,000           14,000           -                      -                        -                        
District Management 57,590           60,500           60,500           15,190           15,126              64                     
Director Fees 9,600              14,000           14,000           -                      3,501                (3,501)               
Election 2,307              5,000              5,000              946                 1,251                (305)                  
Engineering and Other Professional Svcs -                      20,000           20,000           -                      -                        -                        
Insurance 24,996           26,246           29,249           29,249           26,246              3,003                
Legal 69,154           82,500           82,500           12,970           20,625              (7,655)               
Office, Dues, Newsletters & Other 6,816              10,300           10,300           925                 2,574                (1,649)               
Contingency -                      20,000           -                      -                      -                        -                        

Total Expenditures 280,432$       490,546$       473,549$       113,152$       133,026$          (19,874)$           

Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures 53,753$         10,735$         (71,845)$        (78,275)$        (34,964)$           (43,311)$           

Beginning Fund Balance 30,143$         12,326$         83,896$         83,896$         12,326$            71,570$            

Ending Fund Balance 83,896$         23,061$         12,051$         5,621$           (22,638)$           28,259$            

=  
Components of Ending Fund Balance

TABOR Reserve (3% of Revenue) 10,026$         15,038$         12,051$         1,046$           
Unreserved 73,870           8,023              -                      4,574              

Total 83,896$         23,061$         12,051$         5,621$           

Mill Levy
Operating 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Total Mill Levy 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Assessed Value 15$                 15$                 15$                 15$                 

Property Tax Revenue
Operating -                      -                      -                      -                      

Total Property Tax Revenue -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Modified Accrual Budgetary Basis

Page 2

24



KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES WITH BUDGETS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (e-d)
2022 2023 2023 Actual Budget Variance

Unaudited Adopted Projected Through Through Through
Actual Budget Actual 3/31/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023

Revenues
Capital Advances - LDA 2,179,310$    1,328,600$    1,944,629$    710,057$       1,068,879$       (358,822)$         
Capital Advances - Developer 3,388,440      -                      5,158,737      1,315,582      -                        1,315,582         
Cost Share Revenue 3,341,879      1,658,121      1,658,121      -                      -                        -                        
Transfer from District No. 5 2,759,696      -                      -                      -                      -                        -                        
Bond Proceeds (Net) -                      6,017,396      -                      -                      -                        -                        
Interest & Other Income 16,655           -                      43,000           39,280           -                        39,280              

Total Revenues 11,685,981$  9,004,117$    8,804,487$    2,064,919$    1,068,879$       996,040$          

Expenditures
District Management 20,195$         25,000$         25,000$         2,250$           6,250$              (4,000)$             
District Planning/Engineering Mgmt 20,042           25,000           25,000           1,832              2,083                (251)$                
District Engineering 63,315           50,000           50,000           2,415              12,500              (10,085)             
Crossroads Boulevard Mitigation 156,242         -                      -                      -                      -                        -                        
Residential - Ph 1 (ME 10th and ME 11th) 6,380,251      1,500,000      1,500,000      377,598      375,000            2,598                
Millennium East 14th 3,027,588      4,100,000      4,100,000      758,310         1,025,000         (266,690)           
Welcome Center Park 515,498         26,315           26,315           12,773           6,579                6,194                
Millennium East 13th 359,294         500,000         500,000         -                      -                        -                        
Millennium East 15th 1,241,356      504,497         504,497         104,897         126,123            (21,226)             
Millennium East 16th - Intracts 1,241,174      2,000,000      2,000,000      690,837         500,000            190,837            
Millennium East 17th 461,219         100,000         100,000         -                      -                        -                        
Millennium East 18th 641,351         50,000           50,000           459                 459                   -                        
Millennium East 19th 427,162         200,000         200,000         34,028           50,000              (15,972)             
Welcome Center Park Phase 2 113,651         31,480           31,480           4,888              7,869                (2,981)               
Permits, Fees & Other 333                 -                      -                      -                      -                        -                        
Contingency -                      100,000         -                      -                      -                        -                        

Total Capital Expenditures 14,668,671$  9,212,292$    9,112,292$    1,990,287$    2,111,863$       (121,576)$         

Revenues over/(under) Expenditures (2,982,691)$   (208,175)$      (307,805)$      74,632$         (1,042,984)$     1,117,616$       

Beginning Fund Balance 3,290,496$    713,546$       307,805$       307,805$       713,546$          (405,741)$         

Ending Fund Balance 307,805$       505,371$       -$                   382,437$       (329,438)$         711,875$          

Modified Accrual Budgetary Basis

Page 3

25



KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 5
STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES WITH BUDGETS
GENERAL FUND

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (e-d)
2022 2023 2023 Actual Budget Variance

Unaudited Adopted Projected Through Through Through
Revenues Actual Budget Actual 3/31/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023

Property Taxes 201$              50$                50$                -$                   -$                     -$                     
Specific Ownership Taxes -                     3                    3                    -                     -                       -                       
Interest & Other -                     100                -                     -                     -                       -                       

Total Revenues 201$              153                53$                -$                   -$                     -$                     
Expenditures

Payment for Services to No. 1 - O&M 197$              52$                52$                -$                   -$                     -$                     
Treasurer Fees 4                    1                    1                    -                     -                       -                       
Contingency -                     100                -                     -                     -                       -                       

Total Operating Expenditures 201$              153$              53$                -$                   -$                     -$                     

Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                     -$                     

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                     -$                     

Ending Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                     -$                     

=  
Mill Levy

Operating 15.000 15.000 15.000 15.000
Debt Service 62.000 62.000 62.000 62.000

Total Mill Levy 77.000 77.000 77.000 77.000

Assessed Value -$                   3,326$           3,326$           3,326$           

Property Tax Revenue
Operating -                     50                  50                  50                  
Debt Service -                     206                206                206                

Total Property Tax Revenue -$                   256$              256$              256$              

Modified Accrual Budgetary Basis

Page 4

26



KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 5
STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES WITH BUDGETS
DEBT SERVICE FUND

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (e-d)
2022 2023 2023 Actual Budget Variance

Unaudited Adopted Projected Through Through Through
Revenues Actual Budget Actual 3/31/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023

Property Taxes 831$              206$              206$              -$                   -$                     -$                     
Specific Ownership Taxes -                     12                  12                  -                     -                       -                       
Service Fees, District 2 1,315             11,699           11,699           2,320             2,925               (605)                 
Service Fees, District 3 49                  42                  42                  3                    5                      (2)                     
Service Fees, District 4 152                84                  84                  5                    5                      -                       
Service Fees, District 10 3                    3                    3                    1                    1                      -                       
Interest & Other Income 33,811           5,000             35,000           19,669           1,250               18,419             

Total Revenues 36,161$         17,046$         47,046$         21,998$         4,186$             17,812$           

Expenditures
Bond Interest 625,520$       625,500$       625,500$       -$                   -                       -$                     
Trustee Fees 7,000             7,500             7,000 7,000             7,000               -                       
Treasurer's Fees 17                  3                    3                    -                     -                       -                       
Cost of Issuance - DS 12,589           -                     -                     -                     -                       -                       
Contingency -                     5,000             -                     -                     -                       -                       

Total Expenditures 645,126$       638,003$       632,503$       7,000$           7,000$             -$                     

Rev Over/(Under) Exp after Other (608,965)$      (620,957)$      (585,457)$      14,998$         (2,814)$            17,812$           

Beginning Fund Balance 2,350,095$    1,732,318$    1,741,130$    1,741,130$    1,732,318$      8,812$             

Ending Fund Balance 1,741,130$    1,111,361$    1,155,673$    1,756,128$    1,729,504$      26,624$           

=  
Components of Ending Fund Balance

Reserve Requirement ($1,118,976) 1,118,976$    1,093,339$    1,118,279$    1,118,976$    1,118,976$      -$                     
Capitalized Interest 604,630         -                     -                     604,630         604,630           -                       
Bond Fund 17,524           18,022           37,394           32,522           5,898               26,624             

Total 1,741,130$    1,111,361$    1,155,673$    1,756,128$    1,729,504$      26,624$           

Modified Accrual Budgetary Basis

Page 5

27



KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 5
STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES WITH BUDGETS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (e-d)
2022 2023 2023 Actual Budget Variance

Unaudited Adopted Projected Through Through Through
Revenues Actual Budget Actual 3/31/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023

Interest & Other Income 262$              -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                     -$                     
Total Revenues 262$              -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                 -$                     

Expenditures
Transfer to District No. 1 2,759,696$    -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                     -$                     

Total Expenditures 2,759,696$    -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                     -$                     

Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures (2,759,434)$   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                     -$                     

Rev Over/(Under) Exp after Other (2,759,434)$   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                     -$                     

Beginning Fund Balance 2,759,434$    -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                     -$                     

Ending Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                     -$                     

=  

Modified Accrual Budgetary Basis

Page 6

28



KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES WITH BUDGETS
GENERAL FUND

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (e-d)
2022 2023 2023 Actual Budget Variance

Unaudited Adopted Projected Through Through Through
Revenues Actual Budget Actual 3/31/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023

Property Taxes 1,540$           6,100$           6,100$           411$              1,524$           (1,113)$          
Specific Ownership Taxes 124                8,521             8,521             2,519             2,130             389                
Interest & Other -                     100                -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Revenues 1,664$           14,721$         14,621$         2,930$           3,654$           (724)$             

Payment for Services to No. 1 - O&M 318$              2,830$           2,830$           561$              705$              (144)$             
Payment for Services to No. 5 - Debt 1,315             11,699           11,699           2,320             2,925             (605)               
Treasurer Fees 31                   92                   92                   49                   24                   25                   
Contingency -                     100                -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Operating Expenditures 1,664$           14,721$         14,621$         2,930$           3,654$           (724)$             

Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Ending Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
=  

Mill Levy
Operating 15.000 15.000 15.000 15.000
Debt Service 62.000 62.000 62.000 62.000

Total Mill Levy 77.000 77.000 77.000 77.000

Assessed Value 20,012$         79,222$         79,222$         79,222$         

Property Tax Revenue
Operating 300                1,188             1,188             1,188             
Debt Service 1,241             4,912             4,912             4,912             

Total Property Tax Revenue 1,541$           6,100$           6,100$           6,100$           

Modified Accrual Budgetary Basis

Page 7

29



KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES WITH BUDGETS
GENERAL FUND

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (e-d)
2022 2023 2023 Actual Budget Variance

Unaudited Adopted Projected Through Through Through
Revenues Actual Budget Actual 3/31/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023

Property Taxes 43$                39$                39$                -$                   -$                   -$                   
Specific Ownership Taxes 19                   14                   14                   4                     6                     (2)                   
Interest & Other -                     100                -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Revenues 62$                153$              53$                4$                   6$                   (2)$                 

Expenditures
Payment for Services to No. 1 - O&M 12$                10$                10$                1$                   1$                   -$                   
Payment for Services to No. 5 - Debt 49                   42                   42                   3                     5                     (2)                   
Treasurer Fees 1                     1                     1                     -                     -                     -                     
Contingency -                     100                -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Operating Expenditures 62$                153$              53$                4$                   6$                   (2)$                 

Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Ending Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
=  

Mill Levy
Operating 15.000 15.000 15.000 15.000
Debt Service 62.000 62.000 62.000 62.000

Total Mill Levy 77.000 77.000 77.000 77.000

Assessed Value 558$              504$              504$              504$              

Property Tax Revenue
Operating 8                     8                     8                     8                     
Debt Service 35                   31                   31                   31                   

Total Property Tax Revenue 43$                39$                39$                39$                

Modified Accrual Budgetary Basis

Page 8

30



KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 4
STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES WITH BUDGETS
GENERAL FUND

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (e-d)
2022 2023 2023 Actual Budget Variance

Unaudited Adopted Projected Through Through Through
Revenues Actual Budget Actual 3/31/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023

Property Taxes 109$              100$              100$              -$                   -$                   -$                   
Specific Ownership Taxes 82                   7                     7                     6                     6                     -                     
Interest & Other -                     100                -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Revenues 191$              207$              107$              6$                   6$                   -$                   

Expenditures
Payment for Services to No. 1 - O&M 37$                20$                20$                1$                   1$                   -$                   
Payment for Services to No. 5 - Debt 152                84                   84                   5                     5                     -                     
Treasurer Fees 2                     2                     2                     -                     -                     -                     
Contingency -                     100                -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Operating Expenditures 191$              207$              107$              6$                   6$                   -$                   

Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Ending Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
=  

Mill Levy
Operating 15.000 15.000 15.000 15.000
Debt Service 62.000 62.000 62.000 62.000

Total Mill Levy 77.000 77.000 77.000 77.000

Assessed Value 1,414$           1,300$           1,300$           1,300$           

Property Tax Revenue
Operating 21                   20                   20                   20                   
Debt Service 88                   81                   81                   81                   

Total Property Tax Revenue 109$              100$              100$              100$              

Modified Accrual Budgetary Basis

Page 9

31



KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 6
STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES WITH BUDGETS
GENERAL FUND

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (e-d)
2022 2023 2023 Actual Budget Variance

Unaudited Adopted Projected Through Through Through
Revenues Actual Budget Actual 3/31/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023

Property Taxes -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
Specific Ownership Taxes -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Interest & Other -                     100                -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Revenues -$                   100$              -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Expenditures
Payment for Services to No. 1 - O&M -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
Treasurer Fees -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Contingency -                     100                -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Operating Expenditures -$                   100$              -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Ending Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
=  

Mill Levy
Operating 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000
Debt Service 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Total Mill Levy 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000

Assessed Value 15$                13$                13$                13$                

Property Tax Revenue
Operating -                     -                     -                     -                     
Debt Service -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Property Tax Revenue -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Modified Accrual Budgetary Basis

Page 10

32



KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 7
STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES WITH BUDGETS
GENERAL FUND

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (e-d)
2022 2023 2023 Actual Budget Variance

Unaudited Adopted Projected Through Through Through
Revenues Actual Budget Actual 3/31/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023

Property Taxes -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
Specific Ownership Taxes -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Interest & Other -                     100                -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Revenues -$                   100$              -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Expenditures
Payment for Services to No. 1 - O&M -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
Treasurer Fees -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Contingency -                     100                -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Operating Expenditures -$                   100$              -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Ending Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
=  

Mill Levy
Operating 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000
Debt Service 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Total Mill Levy 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000

Assessed Value 15$                13$                13$                13$                

Property Tax Revenue
Operating -                     -                     -                     -                     
Debt Service -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Property Tax Revenue -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Modified Accrual Budgetary Basis

Page 11

33



KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 8
STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES WITH BUDGETS
GENERAL FUND

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (e-d)
2022 2023 2023 Actual Budget Variance

Unaudited Adopted Projected Through Through Through
Revenues Actual Budget Actual 3/31/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023

Property Taxes -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
Specific Ownership Taxes -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Interest & Other -                     100                -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Revenues -$                   100$              -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Expenditures
Payment for Services to No. 1 - O&M -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
Treasurer Fees -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Contingency -                     100                -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Operating Expenditures -$                   100$              -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Ending Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
=  

Mill Levy
Operating 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000
Debt Service 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Total Mill Levy 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000

Assessed Value 15$                13$                13$                13$                

Property Tax Revenue
Operating -                     -                     -                     -                     
Debt Service -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Property Tax Revenue -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Modified Accrual Budgetary Basis

Page 12

34



KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 9
STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES WITH BUDGETS
GENERAL FUND

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (e-d)
2022 2023 2023 Actual Budget Variance

Unaudited Adopted Projected Through Through Through
Revenues Actual Budget Actual 3/31/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023

Property Taxes 12$                11$                11$                -$                   -$                   -$                   
Specific Ownership Taxes 1                     1                     1                     -                     -                     -                     
Interest & Other -                     100                -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Revenues 13$                112$              12$                -$                   -$                   -$                   

Expenditures
Payment for Services to No. 1 - O&M 13$                12$                12$                -$                   -$                   -$                   
Treasurer Fees -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Contingency -                     100                -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Operating Expenditures 13$                112$              12$                -$                   -$                   -$                   

Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Ending Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
=  

Mill Levy
Operating 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000
Debt Service 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Total Mill Levy 25.000 25.000 25.000 25.000

Assessed Value 487$              444$              444$              444$              

Property Tax Revenue
Operating 12                   11                   11                   11                   
Debt Service -                     -                     -                 -                 

Total Property Tax Revenue 12$                11$                11$                11$                

Modified Accrual Budgetary Basis

Page 13

35



KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 10
STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES WITH BUDGETS
GENERAL FUND

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (e-d)
2022 2023 2023 Actual Budget Variance

Unaudited Adopted Projected Through Through Through
Revenues Actual Budget Actual 3/31/2023 3/31/2023 3/31/2023

Property Taxes -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
Specific Ownership Taxes 4                     5                     5                     2                     2                     -                     
Interest & Other -                     100                -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Revenues 4$                   105$              5$                   2$                   2$                   -$                   

Expenditures
Payment for Services to No. 1 - O&M 1$                   2$                   2$                   1$                   1$                   -$                   
Payment for Services to No. 5 - Debt 3                     3                     3                     1                     1                     -                     
Treasurer Fees -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Contingency -                     100                -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Operating Expenditures 4$                   105$              5$                   2$                   2$                   -$                   

Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Ending Fund Balance -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
=  

Mill Levy
Operating 15.000 15.000 15.000 15.000
Debt Service 27.000 27.786 27.786 27.786

Total Mill Levy 42.000 42.786 42.786 42.786

Assessed Value 9$                   15$                15$                15$                

Property Tax Revenue
Operating -                     -                     -                     -                     
Debt Service -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Property Tax Revenue -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Modified Accrual Budgetary Basis

Page 14

36



Baseline Metropolitan District Nos. 1-9 
c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 

Main office located at 550 W. Eisenhower Blvd., Loveland, CO 80537 
Phone: (970) 617-2474 

Email: kinmdadmin@pcgi.com  
Serving our clients and community through excellent dependable service. 

To: Kinston Metropolitan District Board of Directors 
From:  Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 
Subject: Managers’ Report 
Board Meeting Date: June 8, 2023 

General District Matters 

• Primary Contact: Please contact Sarah Bromley, District Manager, at SarahBromley@pcgi.com or
KINMDadmin@pcgi.com for any District matters which include operations, Board of Directors relations,
financial management, compliance, and constituent relations.

• Client Service Team: Since the last board meeting, there have been no staff changes to the Client Service
Team.

• District Matters: The District’s management team executed District matters since the March 9, 2023,
Board meeting. Monthly, District management provides the following services:

o Adheres to administrative and compliance matters.
o Processes monthly payables and financial reports.
o Oversees District budget and operational expenditures.
o Oversees District operations per the approved Service Plan and District needs.
o Collaborates with legal counsel on legal matters.
o Oversee preparation and distribution of board packets including agenda, minutes, reports,

contracts, and agreements prior to board meetings.
o The Manager consistently communicates with the Board including periodic status reports at each

board meeting.

• Management & Administration Updates & Activities: Recently the District’s management team has
prioritized the following items:

o The Kinston HUB EV charging station account has been established. The 5-year service and
account activation contract is scheduled to be paid with the June 2023 payables. We’re working
with ChargePoint to get the station fully activated before payment to alleviate as much station
downtime as possible. Following activation, customer charging rates will be implemented and the
District will begin seeing an income flow from EV station users.

o Three O&M fee letters designed for disbursement to Kinston MD property owners have been
drafted and reviewed by PCGI Financial, Community, and Management teams, as well as District
Legal representation. Following input, the letters were prepared for presentation to the Boards.
Pinnacle’s Management team has also begun the process of drafting an online portal instruction
sheet for inclusion with letter #3 (requesting payment) to the property owners. Ease of payment
and fee transparency are at the forefront of this project. To this end, PCGI has begun preparing
2023 O&M budget allocation graphics to be posted to the District’s website for resident review.

o Management is planning a comprehensive Metro District 101 training that provides an overview
of the District and Board member roles and responsibilities. Typically, this training is scheduled
for newly elected Directors.

37



Baseline Metropolitan District Nos. 1-9 
c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 

Main office located at 550 W. Eisenhower Blvd., Loveland, CO 80537 
Phone: (970) 617-2474 

Email: kinmdadmin@pcgi.com  
Serving our clients and community through excellent dependable service. 

 

• Conference Calls/Coordination Meetings: District Management attended the McWhinney Districts 
Conference Call on May 3, 2023 and June 7, 2023. On May 3rd, we discussed standardizing a process for 
event agreements, event fees and a first amendment policy. Since the Coordination meeting, Kinston, 
Baseline, and Centerra met for a Study Session on May 23rd and agreed on a streamlined process and a set 
fee which will be presented to each District’s Board of Directors for review and approval. 

 
• Website Analytics: Website analytics allows management to review website activity throughout the year. 
 

Last Month YTD 
36 Visits 166  Visits 
32 Unique Visitors 140 Unique Visitors 
81 Page Views 370 Page Views 

 
• Compliance Matters: Annually, District Management ensures the District meets required statutory 

responsibilities and tracks compliance accordingly. 

Compliance Matters Responsible Due Date Completion 
File Boundary Map PCGI 01/01/23 Completed 
Post Transparency Notice PCGI 01/15/23 Completed 
File Certified Copy of Adopted 
Budget PCGI 01/31/23 Completed 

Renew SDA Membership PCGI 03/01/23 Completed 
File Audit Exemptions PCGI 03/31/2023 Completed 
Submit Audit to Governing Board PCGI 06/30/2023  
File Audit PCGI 07/30/2023  
File Annal Report PCGI 10/01/2023  
Draft 2024 Budgets Distributed to 
Board of Directors PCGI 10/15/23  

Renew Property & Liability 
Insurance PCGI 12/01/23  

Certify Mill Levies PCGI 12/15/23  
Adopt Budget PCGI 12/31/23  
Ensure Website Compliance PCGI 12/31/23  

Payables PCGI/Board Monthly Sent to Board third week of the 
month 

 
Operations & Maintenance Updates & Activities 
 

• Previous Month Updates: 
o Splash Pad was activated and is being maintained daily; services provided by MRES. 
o “The Hub” landscaping and surrounding areas have been turned over for maintenance and 

management to KCA and their contracted landscape vendor, EDI, per the maintenance cost 
sharing agreement. 

• Current Month Updates: 
o SWPPP to perform continued inspections and maintenance of various district storm structures and 

drainage areas. 
o District operations team to continue monitoring splash pad operations via MRES, as well as assist 

with various warranty maintenance on newly installed landscape areas. 

38



Loveland      Denver 
        550 W. Eisenhower Blvd 6950 E. Belleview Ave, Suite 200 
          Loveland, CO 80537  Greenwood Village, CO 80111 

(970) 669.3611 (303) 333.4380 

To: Kinston Metropolitan District Board of Directors 
From: Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 
Subject: District Capital Infrastructure Project Report 
Board Meeting Date: June 8, 2023 

BIDDING 

1. Kinston Millennium East 15th Phase 2 Public Infrastructure (CFS #12)
• This project consists of public infrastructure to support the residential lots that make up

Millennium East 15th Subdivision Phase 2.
• A pre-bid meeting took place on April 28, 2023 with a bid opening on May 19, 2023.  A bid

summary will be presented at the June 8, 2023 board meeting.

2. Kinston Millennium East 13th Traffic Signals (CFS #6 and #9)
• This project consists of traffic signals at the intersections of Kinston Parkway and Centerra

Parkway and Centerra Parkway and Elk River Drive to support the residential lots that make up
Millennium East 13th and Millennium East 17th Subdivision.

• A bid summary was presented at the November 10, 2022 board meeting and the board tabled
the award of a construction contract.

CONTRACTING 

3. Kinston Millennium East 13th Public Infrastructure (CFS #6)
• This project consists of public infrastructure to support the residential lots that make up

Millennium East 13th Subdivision.
• A construction contract with Northern Colorado Constructors was conditionally approved at the

October 13, 2022 board meeting.

4. Kinston Millennium East 13th Regional Pond Grading (CFS #6)
• This project consists of the regional pond grading and storm sewer improvements to support the

future residential phases in Kinston.
• A construction contract with Gerrard Excavating was conditionally approved at the October 13,

2022 board meeting.

CONSTRUCTION 

5. Kinston Millennium East 16th Public Infrastructure (CFS #7)
• This project consists of public infrastructure to support the residential lots that make up

Millennium East 16th Subdivision.
• Coyote Ridge Construction has completed the installation of all utilities and is prepping the

roadway for curb & gutter installation.  Completion of the project is anticipated in late July of
2023.

6. Kinston Millennium East 15th Public Infrastructure (CFS #3)
• This project consists of public infrastructure to support the residential lots that make up

Millennium East 15th Subdivision.

39



 

 Loveland           Denver 
               550 W. Eisenhower Blvd     6950 E. Belleview Ave, Suite 200 
           Loveland, CO 80537                          Greenwood Village, CO 80111 
                          (970) 669.3611                       (303) 333.4380 

 

• Coyote Ridge Construction has completed the utility and concrete flatwork installations and is 
working on prepping the roadways for asphalt paving. Completion of the project is anticipated 
in late June of 2023.    
 

7. Kinston Millennium East 14th Subdivision Public Infrastructure (CFS #5) 
• This project consists of public infrastructure to support the residential lots that make up 

Millennium East 14th Subdivision.  
• Coyote Ridge Construction is working on the pedestrian underpass/box culvert under Elk River 

Drive and has installed the bottom lift of asphalt on Elk River Drive up to the pedestrian 
underpass.  Completion of the project is anticipated in July of 2023. 

 
8. Kinston Residential Phase 1 Landscaping (CFS #2) 

• This project consists of public landscaping improvements to support the residential lots that 
make up Phase 1(ME 10th) and the infill lots located within Phase 1B (ME 11th PH1) and the 
landscaping improvements along Centerra Parkway. 

• Bath Landscaping is making progress on the landscaping and irrigation along Kinston Parkway 
and Centerra Parkway.  Completion is anticipated in late summer of 2023. 
 

9. Kinston Residential Phase 1 Public Fencing (CFS #2) 
• This project consists of public fencing to support the residential lots that make up Phase 1 

(ME10th). 
• Custom Fence and Supply has started construction of the fencing and anticipates completion in 

the summer of 2023. 
 
WARRANTY 
 

10. Kinston Welcome Center Public Park (CFS #4) 
• This project includes the public infrastructure and landscaping improvements surrounding the 

Welcome Center building pad site. 
• A final acceptance walk with Bath took place on May 24, 2023 and a punch list has been 

created.  Bath is working on correction of the punch list items.  
 

11. Kinston Residential Phase 1 (ME 10th) and Phase 1B (ME 11th PH1) Public Infrastructure (CFS #2)  
• City streets/storm warranty period expires on January 7, 2024. Final acceptance will be 

requested in November 2023.  
• City water/sewer warranty period expires on March 2, 2024.  Final acceptance will be requested 

in February of 2023. 
 

12. Kinston Residential Phase 1B (ME 11th PH1) Public Infrastructure (CFS #2) 
• The punch list for the water and power department has been completed and the District is 

awaiting the final acceptance letter from the City. 
• City streets/storm warranty expires on July 11, 2024.  Final acceptance will be requested in June 

of 2024. 
 

 
 
 
 

 

40



 

 Loveland           Denver 
               550 W. Eisenhower Blvd     6950 E. Belleview Ave, Suite 200 
           Loveland, CO 80537                          Greenwood Village, CO 80111 
                          (970) 669.3611                       (303) 333.4380 

 

Kinston ME 15th 

 

 

41



 

 Loveland           Denver 
               550 W. Eisenhower Blvd     6950 E. Belleview Ave, Suite 200 
           Loveland, CO 80537                          Greenwood Village, CO 80111 
                          (970) 669.3611                       (303) 333.4380 

 

Kinston ME 14th 

 

42







KINSTON METRO DISTRICT O&M FEE MANAGEMENT TEAM

Brendan Campbell
Director of Finance & 

Accounting

Irene Buenavista
Senior Accounting 

Manager

Summer Skov
AP/AR Manager

Sarah Bromley
District Manager

Bryan Newby
Asst. District Manager

Christy McCutchin
Community Manager

- Initial District Fee
Assessment &

Recommendation

- Fee Analysis
- Periodic Fee Reports

- Database Management
- Billing and Collection
- Online Portal Support

- Process Oversight
- Board

Communications
- Process Support - Resident Engagement

ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES

45



2023 PROPOSED COMMUNICATIONS TIMELINE

• Letter #1: Send notice 
to property owners 
regarding Board intent 
to impose O&M Fee, 
reasoning behind fee, 
and Board meeting 
date, time, and access 
information.

JUN 26-29

• Public Board meeting 
to discuss and take 
action on O&M fee 
resolution. Public 
attendance is expected. 

JUL 13 • Letter #2: Send notice 
of approval of Board 
Resolution to impose 
O&M Fee to include 
reasoning behind fee, 
annual billed amount, 
and billing timeline.

JUL 17-21

• Letter #3: Send letter to 
residents to include 
invoice for quarterly 
amount due as well as 
instructions for 
payment.

OCT 01
• Residents log into 

online portal using the 
provided instruction to 
register their account 
and pay their quarterly 
invoice. 

OCT

• Regular Board meeting 
discussion about the 
process, resident 
feedback, payment 
statuses, and general 
discussion. 

OCT 12 or 
NOV 9

46



• Financial forecast indicates
that the Kinston
Metropolitan Districts will
need to implement an
Operations and
Maintenance Fee to
partially fund the ongoing
operations and maintenance
of District Facilities.

Findings

Why does the District need to impose a fee?

Developer Funding

Funding shortfall

47



• Landscaping
• Irrigation
• Sidewalks
• Regional Trail System
• Parks
• Playgrounds
• Splash pad
• Benches
• Picnic Tables
• Detention Ponds
• Stormwater Structures
• Monumentation
• Community Fencing
• Other public improvements

Operations and Maintenance of Public Improvements

What would an O&M Fee pay for at Kinston?

48



• Implementation of an O&M fee in the amount of $250.00 
annually.

• Increase O&M fee annually by 3% on January 1 of each year 
beginning in 2025.

• Invoice residents quarterly on the first day of January, April, July, 
and October.

• Implement O&M fee as of October 1, 2023 with the billed fee 
being 25% of the annual assessment ($62.50).

• Start assessment of fee upon issuance of Certificate of Occupancy.

Recommendation

What is the proposed O&M Fee?

49



How does Kinston compare to other communities?

50



Questions?

51



Kinston Metropolitan District Nos. 1-10 
c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 

550 W. Eisenhower Blvd., Loveland, CO 80537 
Phone: 970-617-2474/FAX: 970-669-3612 

Email: info@kinstonmd.live 

Kinston Metropolitan District Nos. 1-10 
c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group 
550 W. Eisenhower Blvd 
Loveland, CO 80537 
(970) 617-2474

June 26, 2023 

Re: Kinston Metropolitan District Nos. 1-10 Public Meeting 
Consideration of Operations and Maintenance Fee 

Dear Property Owner, 

On July 13, 2023, the Boards of Directors for Kinston Metropolitan District Nos. 1-10 will be holding a regularly 
scheduled public meeting via Microsoft Teams. Among topics to be discussed is the consideration of the imposition of an annual 
Operations and Maintenance Fee on lots within Kinston Metropolitan District Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 10 (the “Districts”), beginning 
in 2023. The Districts are authorized to impose mill levies and fees pursuant to the Districts’ Service Plan and the Colorado 
Special District Act to pay for public infrastructure and services. Currently, a majority of the tax revenues paid by homeowners 
is used to pay the Districts’ debt, which was issued to fund the construction of public improvements. A long-term financial forecast 
of projected operating revenues and expenditures for the Districts has necessitated the consideration of the imposition of an 
Operations and Maintenance Fee by the Districts’ Boards of Directors. 

Effective January 1, 2023, Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1 (the “District”) and the Kinston Community Association 
entered into a Maintenance Cost Sharing Agreement that defined an operational and maintenance structure that provides for the 
District to fund routine maintenance of District-owned public improvements including, without limitation, landscaping, irrigation, 
sidewalks, the regional trail system, parks, playgrounds, benches and picnic tables, detention ponds and storm structures, 
monumentation, community fencing, and the splash pad. Assuming these additional maintenance costs (previously funded by the 
Association General Assessment), drove the need for consideration by the Boards of District Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 10 of the 
imposition of an Operations and Maintenance Fee on lots within these Districts. Note that starting in January 2023, the Kinston 
Community Association General Assessment Fee was reduced from the prior year, serving as a partial offset to the proposed 
District Operation and Maintenance Fee. 

The Kinston Metropolitan District Nos. 1-10 Boards of Director meeting on July 13, 2023, is open to the public and can 
be accessed through the information provided below. If you have questions about the Districts, or if you would like to attend any 
future meetings of the Districts’ Boards of Directors, please visit www.kinstonmd.live or contact Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 
at (970) 617-2474. You can also reach us via email at info@kinstonmd.live.  

Thank you,  

The Kinston Metropolitan District Nos. 1-10 Boards of Directors 

BOARD MEETING INFORMATION 
Date: July 13, 2023 (Thursday) 
Time: 1:00 P.M.   
Place:  Videoconference via Microsoft Teams 
https://tinyurl.com/mr2d98mm (This link can be copied into your web browser) 
Call In: +1 720-721-3140; Conference ID: 230 336 235# 

Nos. 1-10 

52

http://www.kinstonmd.live/
mailto:info@kinstonmd.live
https://tinyurl.com/mr2d98mm
tel:+1%20720-721-3140,,417260594#%20


Kinston Metropolitan District Nos. 1-10 
c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 

550 W. Eisenhower Blvd., Loveland, CO 80537 
Phone: 970-617-2474/FAX: 970-669-3612 

Email: info@kinstonmd.live 

Kinston Metropolitan District Nos. 1-10 
c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group 
550 W. Eisenhower Blvd 
Loveland, CO 80537 
(970) 617-2474

July 17, 2023 

Re: Imposition of Operations and Maintenance Fee 

Dear Property Owner, 

On July 13, 2023, the Boards of Directors for Kinston Metropolitan District Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 10 (the “Districts”) 
approved the imposition of an annual Operations and Maintenance Fee of $250.00 per Lot within the Districts. Starting 
October 1, 2023, Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1 (the “District”) will send quarterly invoices of $62.50 to each property 
owner. Invoices will be sent in the months of January, April, July and October each year. The Districts may impose and 
adjust (increase or decrease) the amount of the Operations and Maintenance Fee for any year after fiscal year 2023. As a 
property owner in the Districts, your first Operations and Maintenance Fee invoice will be received via mail with instructions 
for online fee payment.  

As indicated in our previous letter, the Districts are authorized to impose mill levies and fees pursuant to the 
Districts’ Service Plan and the Colorado Special District Act to pay for public infrastructure and services. Currently, a 
majority of the tax revenues paid by homeowners is used to pay the Districts’ debt, which was issued to fund the construction 
of public improvements. A long-term financial forecast of projected operating revenues and expenditures for the Districts 
has necessitated the imposition of an Operations and Maintenance Fee by the Districts’ Boards of Directors. 

Effective January 1, 2023, Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1 (the “District”) and the Kinston Community 
Association entered into a Maintenance Cost Sharing Agreement that defined an operational and maintenance structure that 
provides for the District to fund routine maintenance of District-owned public improvements including, without limitation, 
landscaping, irrigation, sidewalks, the regional trail system, parks, playgrounds, benches and picnic tables, detention ponds 
and storm structures, monumentation, community fencing, and the splash pad. Assuming these additional maintenance costs 
(previously funded by the Association General Assessment), drove the need for consideration by the Boards of District Nos. 
1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 10 of the imposition of an Operations and Maintenance Fee on lots within these Districts. Note that starting 
in January 2023, the Kinston Community Association General Assessment Fee was reduced from the prior year, serving as 
a partial offset to the proposed District Operation and Maintenance Fee. 

If you have questions about your Operations and Maintenance Fee, or if you would like to review the adopted 
resolution associated with this Fee, please visit our website at www.kinstonmd.live or contact Pinnacle Consulting Group, 
Inc. at (970) 617-2474. You can also reach us via email at info@kinstonmd.live. 

Thank you,  

The Kinston Metropolitan District Nos. 1-10 Boards of Directors 

Nos. 1-10 

53

http://www.kinstonmd.live/
mailto:info@kinstonmd.live


Kinston Metropolitan District Nos. 1-10 
c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 

550 W. Eisenhower Blvd., Loveland, CO 80537 
Phone: 970-617-2474/FAX: 970-669-3612 

Email: info@kinstonmd.live 

Kinston Metropolitan District Nos. 1-10 
c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group 
550 W. Eisenhower Blvd 
Loveland, CO 80537 
(970) 617-2474
October 01, 2023

Re: Payment of Operations and Maintenance Fee 

Dear Property Owner, 

On July 13, 2023, the Boards of Directors for Kinston Metropolitan District Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 10 (the “Districts”) 
approved the implementation of an annual Operations and Maintenance Fee of $250.00 per lot within the Districts, to be 
billed quarterly in the months of January, April, July, and October of each year. Enclosed is the quarterly Operations & 
Maintenance Fee invoice for $62.50. Please note that interest and late fees will be imposed on any outstanding balance not 
paid by the specified due date. 

This statement does not include your Homeowners Association (HOA) assessment. Your HOA assessment is billed 
separately. 

For online payments, please ensure payment is applied to your Kinston Metropolitan District Nos. 1-10 account and not 
your HOA account. For online payments, please visit the Districts’ website at www.kinstonmd.live.  For first time users, 
click “Register,” then follow the onscreen instructions. 

If you have questions about your Operations and Maintenance Fee, or if you would like to review the adopted resolution 
associated with this Fee, please visit our website at www.kinstonmd.live or contact Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. at (970) 
617-2474. You can also reach us via email at info@kinstonmd.live.

Thank you,

Kinston Metropolitan District Nos. 1-10 Board of Directors

Nos. 1-10 

54

http://www.kinstonmd.live/
mailto:info@kinstonmd.live


1 

8061.0600: 1314700

ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
____________________________ 

This ACCESS AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) 
is made and entered into as of this ____ day of ________________, 2023, by and between 
KINSTON COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC., a Colorado nonprofit corporation (the 
“Association”) and KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1, a quasi-municipal 
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District”).   

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District was formed, inter alia, for the purpose of acquiring, constructing 
operating and maintaining public improvements, as more fully provided in the Consolidated 
Service Plan for Kinston Metropolitan District Nos. 1-10 (the “Service Plan”); and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Service Plan and the Amended and Restated 
Intergovernmental Agreement Concerning District Operations by and among the Kinston 
Metropolitan District Nos. 1-10, dated November 19, 2020, the District is the “Service District” 
and is responsible for managing the design, acquisition, installation, construction, financing, 
operation and/or maintenance of the public improvements needed for the development of the 
property within the boundaries of the District and Kinston Metropolitan District Nos. 2-9, on 
behalf of all of such districts; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with § 32-1-1001(1)(f), C.R.S., the District has the power 
to acquire real and personal property, including rights and interests in property necessary to its 
functions or operations; and 

WHEREAS, the Association is the community association named and referred to in 
the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Kinston, recorded in the real 
property records of the Clerk and Recorder of Larimer County, Colorado on June 18, 2020, 
at Reception Number 20200043890 (the “Declaration”); and  

WHEREAS, the Association owns that property described on the attached Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein (the “Easement Property”), which is part of the 
Common Elements (as defined in the Declaration) of the Association; and 

WHEREAS, Article III, Section 3.2(a)(i) of the Declaration authorizes the 
Association to grant easements over the Common Elements and all other property owned by 
the Association; and  

WHEREAS, §38-33.3-302(1)(i), C.R.S. authorizes the Board of Directors of the 
Association to grant easements, leases, licenses, and concessions through or over the 
Common Elements of the Association; and 

55



2 
 

8061.0600: 1314700 
 

WHEREAS, the District desires to install, operate and maintain landscaping and 
irrigation improvements on the Easement Property; and 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Association desires to grant the District a non-exclusive, perpetual 
easement for the purpose of accessing the Easement Property to install, operate and maintain 
landscaping and irrigation system improvements thereon; and 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the promises and 
agreements of the parties herein set forth, the parties agree as follows: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
 1. Grant of Easement.  The Association hereby grants, sells, bargains and conveys to 
the District, its successors and assigns, for its and their benefit, and for the benefit of its and their 
agents, employees, invitees, contractors, and licensees, a permanent, perpetual, non-exclusive 
easement (the “Easement”) on, over, above, under, across, and through the Easement Property as 
reasonably necessary for the purpose of installing maintaining, repairing, operating, and/or 
replacing landscaping and irrigation system improvements thereon (the “District 
Improvements”).  It is hereby acknowledged that the Easement constitutes a servitude upon the 
Easement Property and runs with the Easement Property.  

 
 2. Maintenance and Operation.   The District shall be responsible for the installation 
of the District Improvements, and after such installation, shall be responsible for the maintenance, 
repair, operation and replacement the District Improvements in good and working order, condition 
and repair.   

 
3. Insurance.  The District shall, at the District’s sole cost and expense, insure the 

District Improvements at full replacement value.  In addition, the District shall, from and after the 
date hereof, at the District’s sole cost and expense, maintain insurance covering the risks that are 
reasonable and customary in the District’s business, consistent with applicable risk management 
parameters and in compliance with Colorado law, and, at a minimum, shall insure the District 
against claims, demands, or actions for loss, damage or injury arising out of its use of the Easement 
Property, in amounts not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property 
damage liability.    
 

4. Mutual Indemnification.  Subject to Section 16 below, the District, the Association 
and their successors and assigns, to the extent permitted by law, shall each indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless the other, and their respective members, officers, directors, managers, agents, and 
employees against and from any and all claims, damages, actions, loss, cost and expense (including 
but not limited to attorneys’ fees) (collectively, “Costs”) resulting directly or indirectly from their 
own respective negligent and/or willful acts or omissions or the negligent or willful acts or 
omissions of their respective contractors, employees or agents (acting within the scope of their 
engagement, employment or agency), with respect to the Easement Property, and the District shall 
further indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Association from and against Costs resulting 

56



3 
 

8061.0600: 1314700 
 

from the District’s maintenance of the District Improvements or the District’s violation of this 
Agreement. The provisions of this Section 4 shall survive the expiration or the termination of the 
Agreement. 
 
 5. Reservation of Rights.  The Association reserves the right to use, and to grant to 
others the right to use, the Easement Property for any and all purposes not inconsistent with the 
use of the Easement by the District, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 
 

6. Restoration.  The District will promptly repair any damage to the Easement 
Property caused in whole by the District and/or the District’s contractors, subcontractors, or agents, 
and the District will restore the Easement Property to the same or better condition as existed prior 
to such damage by the District or the District’s contractors, subcontractors, or agents.   

 
7. Subject to Annual Appropriation and Budget.  The District does not intend hereby 

to create a multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation whatsoever. The 
performance of all financial obligations of the District under this Agreement are subject to annual 
appropriation, budgeting, and availability of funds to discharge such obligations.  Nothing in this 
Agreement constitutes a pledge of the District’s credit or faith, directly or indirectly, to the 
Association.  No provision of this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as a delegation of 
governmental powers by the District, or as creating a multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or 
other financial obligation whatsoever of the District or statutory debt limitation, including, without 
limitation, Article X, Section 20 or Article XI, Section 6 of the Constitution of the State of 
Colorado.  No provision of this Agreement shall be construed to pledge or create a lien on any 
class or source of District funds.  

 8. Inurement.  This Agreement shall run with the land constituting the Easement 
Property and each and every one of the benefits and burdens of this Agreement shall inure to and 
be binding upon the parties and their respective legal representatives, heirs, successors and assigns. 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the District shall not assign, transfer, 
convey, or encumber its rights under this Agreement or sublet the Easement Property without the 
prior written consent of the Association. 

 
 9. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is not intended nor shall it be 
construed to create any third-party beneficiary rights in any person who is not expressly referenced 
herein as a party benefited or burdened hereby. 

 10. No Joint Venture, Partnership, Agency, Etc. This Agreement will not be construed 
as in any way establishing a partnership, joint venture, express or implied agency, or employer-
employee relationship between the Association and the District.   
 
 11. Subjacent and Lateral Support.  The District shall have and exercise the right of 
subjacent and lateral support to whatever extent is necessary or convenient for the District’s full 
use and enjoyment of the Easement. 
 
 12. Subject to Matters of Record.  This Agreement and the rights granted hereunder 
shall be subject to any existing liens and/or encumbrances affecting the Easement Property. 

57



4 
 

8061.0600: 1314700 
 

 
 13. Attorneys’ Fees.  Should any legal proceeding be brought in connection with this 
Agreement, including without limitation, actions based on contract, tort or statute, the prevailing 
party in such action shall be awarded all costs and expenses incurred in connection with such 
action, including reasonable attorneys’ fees.  The provisions of this Section 13 shall survive the 
expiration or the termination of the Agreement. 
 
 14. Captions.  The captions of this Agreement are for convenience and reference only 
and in no way define, describe, extend, or limit the scope, meaning, or intent of this Agreement. 
 
 15. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement (including the exhibits attached hereto, which 
are incorporated herein) constitutes the entire understanding and agreement between the parties 
with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all negotiations or previous 
understandings or agreements between the parties with respect to all or any part of the subject 
matter hereof. 
 
 16. Governmental Immunity.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to limit, 
modify, or otherwise constitute a waiver, in whole or in part, of any governmental immunity that 
may be available by law to the District, its respective officials, employees, contractors or agents, 
and in particular, the District’s rights and protections under the Colorado Governmental Immunity 
Act, §§ 24-10-101, et seq., C.R.S., as amended from time to time. 
 
 17. Modification; Waiver.  This Agreement may not be modified or discharged in any 
respect, except by a further agreement in writing duly executed by the Association and the District 
or their successors and assigns.  However, any consent, waiver, approval, or authorization will be 
effective only if signed by the party granting or making such consent, waiver, approval, or 
authorization.  No waiver shall be deemed a continuing waiver with respect to any breach or 
default, whether of similar or different nature, unless expressly stated in writing. 
 
 18. Governing Law. This Agreement, including all questions concerning the 
construction, validity and interpretation of this Agreement, and the exhibits hereto, and all claims 
or controversies arising out of or relating to this Agreement, shall be governed and construed under 
the applicable laws of the State of Colorado, without regard to conflict of law principals that would 
result in the application of any law other than the law of the State of Colorado. Venue for all actions 
arising from this Agreement shall be in the District Court in and for Larimer County, Colorado. 
The parties expressly and irrevocably waive any objections or rights which may affect venue of 
any such action, including, but not limited to, forum non-conveniens or otherwise. 

 19. Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the validity of any remaining 
portion of this Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect.  In addition, in lieu of such 
void or unenforceable provision, there shall automatically be added as part of this Agreement a 
provision similar in terms to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision so that the resulting 
reformed provision is legal, valid and enforceable. 
 

58



5 
 

8061.0600: 1314700 
 

20. Recording.  This Agreement shall be recorded in the real property records of 
Larimer County, Colorado. 

 
21. Construction.  The language used in this Agreement will be deemed to be the 

language chosen by the parties hereto to express their mutual intent, and no rule of strict 
construction will be applied against any party hereto.  This Agreement shall be given a reasonable 
construction so that the intention of the parties can be carried out.  The parties hereby acknowledge 
they have both participated substantially in the negotiation, drafting and revision of this Agreement 
with representation by counsel and/or such other advisers as they have deemed appropriate.  
Accordingly, this Agreement shall be deemed to have been prepared jointly by the parties and shall 
not be construed against any party as the drafter hereof. 

 
22. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of 

which may be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. Executed copies hereof may be delivered by facsimile or email of a PDF document, 
and upon receipt, shall be deemed originals and binding upon the signatories hereto, and shall have 
the full force and effect of the original for all purposes, included the rules of evidence applicable 
to court proceedings.  
 

[Signature page follows]  

59



6 
 

8061.0600: 1314700 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Association and the District have executed this Agreement 
as of the date first set forth above. 
 

KINSTON COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, 
INC., a Colorado nonprofit corporation 

 
    
By: ______________________________  
Name:         
Its: ______________________________  
  

 
 
STATE OF __________________ ) 
     )  ss. 
COUNTY OF ________________ ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ____________ 
2023, by ________________________, as __________________of Kinston Community 
Association, Inc., a Colorado nonprofit corporation. 
 
 Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
My commission expires: _______________ 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Notary Public 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Signature page 1 of 2 to Access and Maintenance Easement Agreement] 
  

60



7 
 

8061.0600: 1314700 
 

KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 
1, a quasi-municipal corporation and political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado 

 
    
By: ______________________________  
Name:         
Its: ______________________________  
  

 
 
STATE OF __________________ ) 
     )  ss. 
COUNTY OF ________________ ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ____________ 
2023, by ________________________, as __________________of Kinston Metropolitan District 
No. 1, a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado. 
 
 Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
My commission expires: _______________ 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Notary Public 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Signature page 2 of 2 to Access and Maintenance Easement Agreement] 
 

61



 
 

 
 

8061.0600: 1314700 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Easement Property  
 
Outlot E 
Millennium East Tenth Subdivision 
City of Loveland 
County of Larimer 
State of Colorado 
As shown on the plat thereof recorded in the real property records of the Clerk and Recorder of 
Larimer County, Colorado on February 28, 2021, at Reception Number 20210017402 
 

62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



[Supplemental Dispute Resolution Covenant- KMD No.1 Annexation – Millennium East 14th & 
16th Subdivision Plats] 

1 
84888769.3 

After recording, please return to: 
Kristin M. Walker, Esq. 
Polsinelli, PC 
1401 Lawrence Street, Suite 2300 
Denver, Colorado 80202 

SUPPLEMENT TO 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION COVENANT 

(KMD1 Annexation) 

This SUPPLEMENT TO DISPUTE RESOLUTION COVENANT (this “Supplement”) is 
made this    day of   , 202__ (the “Effective Date”) by CENTERRA 
EAST DEVELOPMENT, INC., a Delaware corporation (“Founder”), and the undersigned 
joining landowner (the “Joining Landowner”).  

RECITALS 

A. Founder is the “Founder” under that certain Dispute Resolution Covenant, recorded
in the official real property records of Larimer County, Colorado on June 18, 2020, at Reception 
No. 20200043891 (as the same has been or may be supplemented and amended from time to time, 
the “Declaration”).  Capitalized terms used in this Supplement without definition have the 
meanings assigned to them in the Declaration. 

B. Pursuant to Section 1.2 and Section 2.2 of the Declaration, Founder may cause any
real property not previously subject to the Declaration to become subject to it, with the consent of 
the owner of such real property to the extent Founder is not the owner. 

C. Founder and the Joining Landowner own the real property legally described on the
attached Exhibit A (the “Annexed Property”). Founder desires to make the Annexed Property 
subject to the Declaration, and the Joining Landowner, by execution below, consents. 

SUPPLEMENT 

NOW THEREFORE, Founder hereby supplements the Declaration and declares as 
follows: 

1. Annexation.  Pursuant to Section 1.2 and Section 2.2 of the Declaration, the
Annexed Property is hereby annexed into and made a part of the Property.  From and after the 

121



 

[Supplemental Dispute Resolution Covenant- KMD No.1 Annexation – Millennium East 14th & 
16th Subdivision Plats] 

 
 
2 

84888769.3 

Effective Date, the term “Property” as used in the Declaration shall be deemed to include the 
Annexed Property.  In accordance with the foregoing, the Annexed Property will be owned, held, 
transferred, conveyed, sold, leased, rented, hypothecated, encumbered, used, occupied, 
maintained, altered and improved subject to, and be benefited by, the restrictions and other 
provisions set forth in the Declaration. 

2. Effect; Conflicts.  Except as supplemented by this Supplement, the Declaration 
remains in full force and effect in accordance with its terms.  In the event of any conflict between 
the Declaration and this Supplement, this Supplement shall control. 

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.  The signature page follows.] 

122



 

[Supplemental Dispute Resolution Covenant- KMD No.1 Annexation – Millennium East 14th & 
16th Subdivision Plats] 

 
3 

84888769.3 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused this Supplement to be executed 
as of the date set forth below to be effective as of the later to occur of the Effective Date or the 
date this Supplement is recorded in the Official Records.   

 
FOUNDER: 

 
 
 CENTERRA EAST DEVELOPMENT, INC.,  

a Delaware corporation 
 
 
By________________________________ 

Bethany Johnson 
EVP, General Counsel  

 
STATE OF COLORADO  ) 
     ) ss. 
CITY AND COUNTY OF DENVER) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
____________________, 202__, by Bethany Johnson, EVP, General Counsel of CENTERRA 
EAST DEVELOPMENT, INC., a Delaware corporation. 
 
 Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 My Commission Expires:  _______________________ 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 

 Notary Public 
 

  

123



 

[Supplemental Dispute Resolution Covenant- KMD No.1 Annexation – Millennium East 14th & 
16th Subdivision Plats] 

 
4 

84888769.3 

CONSENT OF JOINING LANDOWNER 

By execution below, KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1, a quasi-municipal 
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado, as a Joining Landowner and owner 
of a portion of the Annexed Property, hereby consents to the recording of this Supplement to 
Dispute Resolution Covenant against the Annexed Property and agrees that the Annexed Property 
is hereby subjected to the terms and conditions of the Dispute Resolution Covenant, as may be 
amended or supplemented from time to time, and this Supplement. 
 

KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1,  
a quasi-municipal corporation and political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado  

 
 

By:  ______________________________ 
Name:   Tim DePeder  
Its:  Vice President  

 

 

STATE OF COLORADO   ) 
)  ss. 

CITY & COUNTY OF DENVER  ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___________________, 
202__ by Tim DePeder, as Vice President of Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1, a quasi-
municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado.  

 
 Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 My Commission Expires:  _______________________ 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 

 Notary Public 

124



 

[Supplemental Dispute Resolution Covenant- KMD No.1 Annexation – Millennium East 14th & 
16th Subdivision Plats] 

 
5 

84888769.3 

EXHIBIT A 
Annexed Property 

  
Outlots A, P, U & V  
Millennium East Fourteenth Subdivision, 
City of Loveland, County of Larimer, State of Colorado, 
recorded on March 11, 2022, as Reception No. 20220016371 with the Clerk and 
Recorder, Larimer County, Colorado.  
 
Outlots C through F, inclusive 
Tract A  
Millennium East Sixteenth Subdivision,  
City of Loveland, County of Larimer, State of Colorado,  
recorded on June 10, 2022, as Reception No. 20220037098 with the Clerk and 
Recorder, Larimer County, Colorado.  
 
Outlots M, N & O  
Tract B  
Millennium East 15th Subdivision,  
City of Loveland, County of Larimer, State of Colorado,  
recorded on June 10, 2022, as Reception No. 20220037090 with the Clerk and  
Recorder, Larimer County, Colorado.  
 

 
 

125



 [Quit Claim Deed – CED to KMD No. 1- Millennium East 14th, 16th & 15th Subdivision Plats] 
84888771.3 

After recording, please return to: 
Kristin M. Walker, Esq. 
Polsinelli, PC 
1401 Lawrence Street, Suite 2300 
Denver, Colorado 80202 

NO DOCUMENTARY FEE REQUIRED 

Quit Claim Deed  
(Pursuant to C.R.S. § 38-30-116) 

On this ____ day of    , 202__, CENTERRA EAST DEVELOPMENT, INC., a 
Delaware corporation (“Grantor”), whose address is 1800 Wazee Street, Suite 200, Denver, 
Colorado 80202, for the consideration of Ten Dollars and other good and valuable consideration, 
in hand paid, hereby sells and quitclaims to KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1, 
a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (“Grantee”), 
whose address is 2725 Rocky Mountain Avenue, Suite 200, Loveland, Colorado 80538, the 
following real property in the County of Larimer, State of Colorado, to wit (the “Subject 
Property”):  

Outlots A, P, U & V  
Millennium East Fourteenth Subdivision, 
City of Loveland, County of Larimer, State of Colorado, 
recorded on March 11, 2022, as Reception No. 20220016371 with the Clerk and 
Recorder, Larimer County, Colorado.  

Outlots C through F, inclusive 
Tract A  
Millennium East Sixteenth Subdivision,  
City of Loveland, County of Larimer, State of Colorado,  
recorded on June 10, 2022, as Reception No. 20220037098 with the Clerk and 
Recorder, Larimer County, Colorado.  

Outlots M, N & O  
Tract B  
Millennium East 15th Subdivision,  
City of Loveland, County of Larimer, State of Colorado,  
recorded on June 10, 2022, as Reception No. 20220037090 with the Clerk and 
Recorder, Larimer County, Colorado. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, the same, together with all and singular appurtenances and privileges 
thereunto belonging, or in anywise thereunto appertaining, and all the estate, right, title and 
interest, and claim whatsoever, of the Grantor, either in law or in equity, to the proper use, benefit 
and behalf of the Grantee, and Grantee’s successors and assigns forever.  

126



 2 
 [Quit Claim Deed – CED to KMD No. 1- Millennium East 14th & 16th Subdivision Plats] 
84888771.3 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has executed this deed on the date set forth below to be 
effective as of the Effective Date above.   
 
 
 CENTERRA EAST DEVELOPMENT, INC.,  

a Delaware corporation 
 
 
By________________________________ 

Bethany Johnson 
EVP, General Counsel  

 
STATE OF COLORADO  ) 
     ) ss. 
CITY AND COUNTY OF DENVER) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
____________________, 202__, by Bethany Johnson, EVP, General Counsel of CENTERRA 
EAST DEVELOPMENT, INC., a Delaware corporation. 
 
 Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 My Commission Expires:  _______________________ 
 
 
 
     ________________________________________________ 
     Notary Public 
 

127



RESOLUTION OF 
THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF 

KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 
REGARDING DISTRICT FACILITIES  

WHEREAS, the Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1 (the “District”) is a quasi-municipal 
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(m), C.R.S., the District’s Boards of Directors (the 
“Boards”) has authority to adopt, amend, and enforce rules and regulations not in conflict with the 
constitution and laws of the State of Colorado for carrying on the business, objects, and affairs of the 
Board and of the District; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Colorado law and the District’s Service Plan, the District has the 
power to provide for parks and recreational facilities and programs and is empowered to regulate the 
use of and access to property it owns pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(f), C.R.S.; and  

WHEREAS, the District owns, operates and maintains Park and Recreation Facilities at the 
District for the use and benefit of its residents, taxpayers, and the public (the “Park and Recreation 
Facilities”); and 

WHEREAS, to preserve and protect District property, prevent and assure accountability for 
damage, and provide for the safety of visitors, the District desires to establish rules for public use of 
the Park and Recreation Facilities. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the District resolves as follows: 

1. Rules for Public Use of Park. The Board hereby establishes and adopts rules and
regulations regarding the public use of Park and Recreation Facilities as set forth in Exhibit A attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Park Use Rules”).  

2. Rules for Use of Facilities. The Board hereby establishes and adopts rules and
regulations regarding the public use of the Park and Recreation Facilities for any events contained 
within the Park and Recreation Facilities as set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto an incorporated 
herein by this reference (the “Facility Rules”). 

3. First Amendment Demonstration Permits. Permits are required for events involving
protests, marches and/or any other form of protected speech activity. The Application for First 
Amendment Demonstration Permit attached hereto as Exhibit C must be submitted and processed in 
advance of any event for which a permit is required. 

4. Event License.  Licenses are required to reserve space within a District-Owned Park
and Recreation Facility. The Application for Event License, for events not involving protests, marches 
and/or any other form of protected speech activity, attached hereto as Exhibit D must be submitted and 
processed in advance of any event for which a license is required.  

5. District Representative. The Board delegates the District Manager (“Manager”) as
District representative for purposes of distributing the Park Use Rules, Facility Rules, Application for 
First Amendment Demonstration Permit and Application for Event License, and for receiving and 

128



processing the respective Application for Permit or License. The Manager shall inform the Board of 
permit and/or license applications submitted and processed, and if any application is denied, the 
reasons for denial. 

 
6. Enforcement. The District will advise City of Loveland Police Department of the Park 

Use Rules. The District shall take steps to enforce the rules as appropriate. 
 
7. Modification. The District may change, modify, or amend these Park Use Rules and 

Facility Rules at any time. 
 
8. Prior Rules Superseded. The Park Use Rules shall supersede any previous rules 

regarding Park and Recreation Facility use. 
 
9. Authority. The Board has the authority to adopt Park and Recreation Facility specific 

fees and rules at its discretion. 
 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS 1ST DAY OF JUNE, 2023. 

 
 
     KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 

 
 
 
        
By: Tim Depeder, Vice-President 

 
 
 

129



EXHIBIT A 

Park Use Rules 

1. Applicability of Laws. In addition to existing local, state and federal laws, hereunder
enumerated are the laws of the Park and Recreation Facility.

2. Injury to Property and Plants.  No person shall abuse, deface, damage, remove, destroy, or
vandalize any property, sculptures and related fixtures, or other features within the Park and
Recreation Facility, nor shall any person injure or gather trees, shrubs, plants, or other growing
items within the Park and Recreation Facility.

3. Signs and Notices.  No person shall deface or injure any signs or notices placed in the Park and
Recreation Facility by the Districts, the City, or any other governmental entity.

4. Trash and Dumping of Trash/Refuse. All litter, trash, recycling and debris must be properly
disposed of. Dumping of refuse generated offsite is prohibited. Any trash or debris that cannot be
placed inside a trash receptacle must be removed from the property by the user(s).

5. Wading and Swimming.  Any wading or swimming in any fountain or man-made water feature
located within the Park and Recreation Facility will be subject to such rules, regulations, and
restrictions as the Districts may post on signs located adjacent to the water feature(s). Wading or
swimming in any natural ponds, streams, drainage swales or similar is strictly prohibited.

6. Pets. All pets in the Park and Recreation Facility must be on a leash and under the control of the
owner at all times. All pet waste must be immediately removed in appropriate pick-up bags by
the owner.

7. Sales, Solicitations, and Advertising.  Unless otherwise granted a permit by the Districts or
Manager, no person shall sell or offer for sale any goods or services in the Park and Recreation
Facility, nor shall any person advertise, solicit for any purpose, or display any sign within any
portion of the Park and Recreation Facility.

8. Fireworks, Fires or Open Flames, Model Rockets. Discharge or use of projectiles or fireworks
is prohibited. Open flames, grills, and candles are prohibited, subject to permitting.

9. Weapons and Firearms. Possession, carrying, display, brandishing, or use of any weapon or
firearm is regulated by local and state laws and ordinances.

10. Alcoholic Beverages.  Unless properly permitted by state law and approved by Manager in
connection with an Event, no person shall consume or sell alcoholic beverages in any portion of
the Park and Recreation Facility.

11. Vehicles and Traffic.  Unless granted a permit in connection with an approved Event, no
motorized vehicles including but not limited to golf carts, automobiles, motorized scooters,
motorized skateboards, hoverboards, motorized bicycles, mopeds, and motorcycles, shall be
allowed in the Park and Recreation Facility except those operated by the Districts and appropriate
law enforcement agencies. Bicycles and non-motorized scooters shall be permitted only in

130



specifically designated areas and shall be operated at all times with reasonable care for the safety 
of others. 

12. Glass. Glass is not permitted in any form in the Park and Recreation Facility.

13. Possession of Illegal Drugs or Paraphernalia; Public Consumption of Marijuana Products.
In addition to existing state and federal laws, the possession of any illegal drug, substance or drug
paraphernalia is prohibited. The public consumption of any marijuana product is prohibited.

14. Amplification and Noise. Amplified sound is prohibited, unless otherwise granted by a permit
from the Districts or Manager.

15. Disposables. Balloons, birdseed, rice, and confetti are prohibited.

16. Disruption of District Business. Disruption of any District business, event, or other sponsored
activity is prohibited.

17. Structures. No overnight camping, tents, enclosures, or other unpermitted structures such as air
castles, pools, or water slides unless otherwise permitted by the District.

18. Enforcement. The District will advise City of Loveland Police Department of the Park Use
Rules. The District shall take steps to enforce the rules as appropriate.

19. Park and Recreation Facilities Hours. Unless modified by the Districts or Manager for Events
or other coordinated activities, the Park and Recreation Facilities shall be open daily to the
general public between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m.

20. Permits/Licenses & Facility Rules. Permits and/or licenses are required for private events held
in the Park and Recreation Facilities and must be in compliance with District’s Park Use and
Facility Rules. For events involving protests, marches, and/or any other form of protected speech
related activity, the Application for First Amendment Demonstration Permit must be submitted in
advance of any applicable event. For any other event, the Event License Agreement must be
submitted in advance of such event. The permit and/or license may require a non-refundable
application fee and a refundable damage deposit. Permits/licenses are not transferrable and must
be in the possession of the license/permit holder during the event. Event organizers are required
to obtain all applicable permits (e.g., noise, alcohol, street closure) from applicable jurisdictions
(e.g., the City of Loveland) and must comply with all applicable state and local statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations. The permit/license holder is responsible for the actions of event
attendees.

a. Security Deposit. A refundable damage deposit is required for all events. The
Damage Deposit will be returned following completion of the event if the property
used is cleaned and restored to the condition it was in prior to the event. If the
property used is not properly cleaned or restored, the Damage Deposit or portion
thereof shall be applied to the costs of clean-up, and the permit/license holder will be
billed the actual costs of clean-up. Any unused portion of the Damage Deposit will be
refunded.

131



b. Parking Control. The permit/license holder is responsible for parking control
measures as may be required by the District, Manager, City of Loveland and event
permit/license agreement.

c. Insurance. The District may require commercial general liability insurance and other
insurance coverage for any event held at the Park and Recreation Facilities.

d. Security. The District may require security services for events, including, but not
limited to, events involving provision of alcohol or creating significant risk of injury
to person or property to ensure public safety.

132



EXHIBIT B 

Facility Rules 

1. Applicable Event permit and/or license must be on display throughout the Event.

2. No items may be permanently attached to District property (e.g., fences, trees, or trash receptacles).

3. Temporary structures, including tents and pavilions, are permitted upon District approval, but may
not remain overnight. Any staking with in-ground anchors of temporary structures requires exact
staking locations and prior specific approval from the District.

4. Electrical power will not be furnished unless pre-approved.

5. Permittee/Licensee agrees to keep golf carts only on trails and designated walkways.
Permittee/Licensee agrees that golf carts will not be driven on any grass, lawn areas, open spaces,
native areas at any time.

6. Parking Control. The permit/license holder is responsible for parking control measures as may be
required by the District, Manager, City of Loveland and event permit/license agreement.

7. Security. The District may require security services for events, including, but not limited to,
events involving provision of alcohol or creating significant risk of injury to person or property
to ensure public safety.

8. Set-Up and Tear-Down. Set-up and tear-down must take place between the hours of 7:00 a.m. –
11:00 p.m. the day of the Event. The Park and Recreation Facilities are open from 8 a.m. – 10 p.m.
everyday. Permittees/Licensees are able to enter the Park and Recreation Facilities one hour prior
to opening for set-up purposes only and remain one hour after Park and Recreation Facilities
closing for tear-down purposes only.

9. General Liability Insurance. The District may require general liability insurance to ensure public
safety if the Event poses a substantial risk of damage or injury based on the anticipated number
of attendees, the nature of the Event and activities involved, and the physical characteristics of
the Event site. If general liability insurance is required, the District shall be named as an
additional insured. Coverage must be maintained for the duration of the Event, including through
set-up and tear-down.

10. Rescheduling Due to Act of God. The District is not responsible for failure to provide the basic
facilities and services at the Permit/License Area due to emergencies, catastrophes, or interruptions
of public utilities or services.  If an Act of God were to occur preventing the Event from taking
place as scheduled, the District will allow for the Event to be rescheduled, pending availability,
with no penalty. Cancellations due to inclement weather will not be considered for refunds.

11. Conduct. Good order and proper decorum shall be maintained at all times by persons conducting
and participating in the Event. Persons will leave District property at the designated conclusion
time. The Permittee/Licensee is responsible for security and orderly behavior at the Event.

133



    
 

12. Damage. Permittee/Licensee must ensure that the Permit/License Area and any property or 
improvements located thereon are not damaged in any manner by virtue of the Event and/or 
Permittee’s/Licensee’s use of the Permit/License Area. Permittee/Licensee is fully responsible for 
prompt repair in accordance with the District’s instructions, at Permittee’s/Licensee’s sole expense, 
of any such damage that occurs.  Permittee/Licensee must comply with any instructions of the 
District concerning use of the Permit/License Area, and must return the Permit/License Area and 
its facilities to the same state of cleanliness and orderliness as it was prior to Permittee’s/Licensee’s 
use. 

 
13. Alcohol. Unless all proper permits and insurances are obtained under state law, and/or local 

ordinance/rule, no person shall consume or sell alcoholic beverages at the Event.  Copies of all 
permits for consuming alcoholic beverages must be submitted to the District at least seven (7) 
days prior to the Event.  Failure to provide such permits within the time period specified herein 
shall immediately revoke Permittee’s/Licensee’s ability to sell or permit consumption of alcoholic 
beverages at the Event. 

 
14. Photography. Permittee/Licensee grants to the District an irrevocable, non-exclusive license to use 

photos taken at the Event for the District’s purposes. 
 

15. Utilities. Permittee/Licensee shall also pay for any utilities or other services provided for its use of 
the Permit/License Area over and above the level normally provided by the District. 
Permittee/Licensee will pay any invoice from the District therefor within thirty (30) days of 
receipt.  

 
16. Sub-License. Permittee/Licensee may not sub-license in whole or in part, the Permit/License Area 

and its facilities. 
 

17. Security. Permittee/Licensee is responsible for adequate security and peacekeeping measures 
during the Event, including all set-up and tear-down. If alcohol will be present, Permittee/Licensee 
is responsible for (i) establishing a security plan and (ii) procuring private security (one security 
officer per every hundred attendees). The District must approve Permittee’s/Licensee’s security 
plan in the event alcohol is served at least fourteen (14) days prior to the Event.       

 
18. Termination. The Permit/License Application may be terminated by either party upon the 

giving of seven (7) days written notice. If terminated by Permittee/Licensee less than seven (7)  
days from the Event, Permittee/Licensee agrees to pay the District 50% of the Event Fee. If 
terminated by Permittee/Licensee less than three (3) days from the Event, Permittee/Licensee 
agrees to pay the District 100% of the Event Fee. Such termination payments shall be paid by 
Permittee/Licensee (or retained by the District from the Event Fee) at the time of termination. The 
District may terminate this Permit/License Agreement immediately if Permittee/Licensee defaults 
under any term or condition hereof. 

 
19. Termination Expenses. Permittee/Licensee is responsible for all expenses incurred by the District 

as a result of any and all termination, cancellation, or rescheduling of the Event.  Expenses may 
include, but are not limited to, wages, rental expense, set up, tear down, and clean up. Payment of 
these expenses must made immediately by Permittee/Licensee upon receipt of an itemized invoice 
from the District. 

 

134



    
 

20. Damage Deposit. The Damage Deposit will be returned after completion of the Event, if the 
Permit/License Area is cleaned and restored to the condition it was in prior to the Event. If the 
Permit/License Area is not properly cleaned or restored, the Damage Deposit or portion thereof 
shall be applied to the costs of clean-up, and Permittee/Licensee will be billed the actual costs of 
clean-up. Any unused portion of the Damage Deposit will be returned to Permittee/Licensee. 

 

  

135



    
 

EXHIBIT C 

First Amendment Demonstration Permit

136



 

Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1 
Application for First Amendment Demonstration Permit 

___ Park 
 
Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1 (the “District”) allows events and peaceful assembly at District Park and 
Recreation Facilities. To preserve and protect District property, prevent and assure accountability for damage, and 
provide for the safety of visitors, the District manages organized activities through a permit system. Permits control 
aspects of the planned activity such as date, time, location, and number of participants. The content of what permit-
holders have to say is NOT regulated. 
 
Submission of this application does not constitute approval or permission. You (“Permittee”) will be notified of the 
disposition of the application and the necessary steps to secure your permit. (Note: Permittee may be required to 
provide proof of liability insurance, in addition to other requirements.) In submitting this Application and if approved, 
the Permittee has read and agrees that Permittee and all attendees will abide by the Park Use Rules and Facility Rules. 
 
Permits are required for events and demonstrations such as rallies, picketing, speechmaking, marching, or similar 
activities that primarily involve communication or expression of views or grievances (a “Special Event”).  
 
If approved, Permittee agrees to pay: 
 

$500/day Special Event Fee 
 
The Special Event Fee is due upon signing this Permit Agreement and will secure the Special Event date. The 
balance of Damage Deposit is due no later than seven (7) days prior to the Event. 
 
$500 Refundable Damage Deposit.  
 
The Damage Deposit will be returned after completion of the Event, if the Permit Area is cleaned and restored 
to the condition it was in prior to the Special Event. If the Permit Area is not properly cleaned or restored, the 
Damage Deposit or portion thereof shall be applied to the costs of clean-up, and Permittee will be billed the 
actual costs of clean-up. Any unused portion of the Damage Deposit will be returned to Permittee. 

 
The District reserves the right to require Permittee to provide security and/or parking management services for the 
Special Event. For purposes of this Special Event, Permittee is / is not (circle one) required to provide security and/or 
parking management services.  
 
Please supply the information requested below and attach additional sheets, if necessary.  
 
Applicant (Representative) Name: 
 

Entity/ Organization Name: 
 

Address: 
 

Address: 

City/State/Zip Code: 
 

City/State/Zip Code: 

Telephone: Telephone: 
Cell: Cell: 
Email: Email: 
Please describe proposed Special Event (attach diagram / site plan):  
 
 
 
Date of Special Event: 
Special Event start:  Special Event end: 
Tear-down will be completed:  

137



 

Number of attendees (please provide an estimate): 
Please describe clean-up and removal of trash, animal waste, and recyclables during and after the Special Event: 
 
 
 
Please describe any additional permits you have or will obtain for the Special Event: 
 
 
 
 
Do you require use of the stage?                                          Y        N 
Will the Special Event require road closures?                     Y        N  

 
 

WAIVER, RELEASE AND INDEMNIFICATION 
 

For an activity or event for which a permit is issued, proposed to be held, or actually held in District Park and 
Recreation Facilities, the Permittee shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District, its officers, employees, 
agents and assigns, individually and collectively against any losses, damages, liabilities, claims, suits, actions, causes 
of action, costs and expenses of any kind whatsoever that may be suffered, incurred, or sustained by Permittee or for 
which the District its officers, employees, agents and assigns, individually and collectively may become liable resulting 
from, arising out of, or relating to the activity or event. The Permittee hereby releases, waives, discharges and 
covenants not to sue the District, its officers, employees, agents and assigns, individually and collectively for any 
claim, demand, action, cause of action, or damages the Permittee has or may have arising out of or related to the 
permitted use of the District Park and Recreation Facilities by the Permittee. 
 
Applicant Name (Print):       
 
Applicant Signature:         Date:      
 
 
 
Completed application must be accompanied by the damage deposit in the form of a cashier’s check or money order 
in the amount indicated on the Permit Agreement, made payable to Kinston Metropolitan District. 
 
Submit your completed application to: sarahbromley@pcgi.com If your request is approved, a permit will be sent to 
the person designated on the application.  
 
The permit must be signed and returned prior to the event.  
 
********************************************************************************* 
FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY: 

[insurance, noise, alcohol, fencing, security, coordination with City, etc.] 

 

 

********************************************************************************* 
 
 
 

 

138



 

EXHIBIT D 
 

Event License  

139



 

KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 
 

LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR USE OF  
DISTRICT PROPERTY 

 
This License Agreement is made this __ day of _____, 20___, by and between Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1 
(the “District”) and      (“Licensee”).   
 

RECITALS 
              
WHEREAS, Licensee desires to use the ___ Park, owned and controlled by the District (the “License Area”), and the 
District is willing to permit and license such use pursuant to the following provisions. 
 
ACCORDINGLY, the parties hereto agree as follows:  
 
1. The District hereby grants Licensee an exclusive, non-transferrable license to hold the Event, as described in 
Paragraph 2 below, at the License Area. 

 
2. Licensee intends to hold the following event (the “Event”) at the License Area:  

 
Name of Event  

 
Date(s) of Event  

 
Time Frame of Event  

 
Set-Up Date & Time  

 
Tear-Down Date & 
Time 

 
 

Contact Person  
 

Contact Address  
 

Contact Phone  
 

Contact Email  
 

           
                 
3. Licensee hereby affirms that alcohol will / will not be (circle one) served at the Event.   
 
4. The District reserves the right to require Licensee to provide security and/or parking management services for 
the Event. For purposes of this Event, Licensee is / is not (circle one) required to provide security and/or parking 
management services. 

 
5. The District has approved the use of no more than _____ golf carts for Licensee’s Event. 

 

6. The District reserves the right to allow the installation of signage in the License Area for the Event. Event and 
Sponsorship signage is / is not (circle one) allowed. 
 
7. In connection with the Event, Licensee shall pay the following to the District, made payable to, “Kinston 

Metropolitan District No. 1”: 

140



 

 
$50/day Event Fee  
$200 Refundable Damage Deposit  

 
The Event Fee is due upon signing this License Agreement and will secure the Event date. The balance of Damage 
Deposit is due no later than seven (7) days prior to the Event.  
 
8. By taking possession of the License Area, Licensee is deemed to have: (i) inspected the License Area; (ii) 
accepted the License Area “AS IS” with no representation or warranty by the District as to the condition of the License 
Area, its suitability for Licensee’s proposed operation or the improvements therein; and (iii) agreed that the District 
has no obligation to improve or repair the License Area.  Any improvements must be approved in advance by the 
District. 
 
9. Licensee has reviewed the District’s Park Use Rules, and agrees that Licensee and its invitees, guests and/or 
participants shall abide by all such rules. In addition, Licensee has reviewed the Facility Rules and agrees that Licensee 
and its invitees, guests and/or participants shall abide by all such rules.  

 
10. Licensee has reviewed and signed or will review and sign the waiver and indemnity provision attached hereto 
as “Waiver, Release and Indemnification”. 

 
 
11. The District may require commercial general liability insurance and other insurance coverage for any event 
held at the Park and Recreation Facilities. Should insurance be required, Licensee shall provide to the District, a 
certificate of insurance evidencing that adequate insurance has been provided in accordance with the requirements of 
this paragraph not later than seven (7) days prior to the Event set-up date. 

 
12. In any suit brought by the District by reason of Licensee’s default, the District shall be entitled to an award of 
its costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

 
13. It is understood and agreed that no agency, employment or partnership is hereby created by the parties.  It is 
agreed that Licensee will not make any representations which would create apparent agency, employment or 
partnership and Licensee shall not have any authority to act for the District in any manner to create any obligations or 
debts which would be binding upon the District or the License Area.   

 
14. The rights and privileges of Licensee under this License Agreement shall not be assigned in whole or in part 
to any other party. 

 
15. Nothing in this License Agreement shall be construed as a waiver in whole or in part of any of the rights, 
protections, privileges, limitations on damages, or governmental immunity provided to the District, or its members, 
directors, officers, employees, servants, agents, or authorized volunteers pursuant to the Colorado Governmental 
Immunity Act, Section 24-10-101, et seq., C.R.S., as the same currently exists or may hereafter be amended. 

 
 

[Remainder of this page left intentionally blank.] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

141



 

THE DISTRICT:      LICENSEE:  
 
KINSTON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 
 
 
BY:         BY:          
        _________________                             
 
  
 
Date: ____________________________   Date: ________________________    
  
  

142



WAIVER, RELEASE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

For an activity or event for which a license is issued, proposed to be held, or actually held in a District Park and 
Recreation Facilities, the Licensee shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District, its officers, employees, 
agents and assigns, individually and collectively against any losses, damages, liabilities, claims, suits, actions, causes 
of action, costs and expenses of any kind whatsoever that may be suffered, incurred, or sustained by Licensee or for 
which the District its officers, employees, agents and assigns, individually and collectively may become liable resulting 
from, arising out of, or relating to the activity or event. The Licensee hereby releases, waives, discharges and covenants 
not to sue the District, its officers, employees, agents and assigns, individually and collectively for any claim, demand, 
action, cause of action, or damages the Licensee has or may have arising out of or related to the permitted use of the 
District Park and Recreation Facilities by the Licensee. 

Applicant Name (Print): 

Applicant Signature:   Date: 

Completed application must be accompanied by the damage deposit in the form of a cashier’s check or money order 
in the amount indicated on the License Agreement, made payable to Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1. 

Submit your completed application to: sarahbromley@pcgi.com If your request is approved, a license will be sent to 
the person designated on the application.  

The license must be signed and returned prior to the event. 

********************************************************************************* 
FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY: 

[insurance, noise, alcohol, fencing, security, coordination with City, etc.] 

********************************************************************************* 

143


	I D - Agenda 
	II A - Kinston - 2023 03 09 - Regular Meeting Minutes 
	II B - Check Detail 03-03-23 - 06-01-23
	II C - Mod Report 
	II D - 0323 Fnancial Statements
	III A - Managers Report
	IV A i - Cap Infra Report 6-8-23
	IV A ii - Kinston Phasing Map 11-10-22 resized
	V C i - KMD O&M Fee Powerpoint 
	V C ii - Kinston MD OM Letter #1 
	V C iii - Kinston MD OM Letter #2 
	V C iv - Kinston MD OM Letter #3
	VI A - Access and Maintenance Easement with Kinston Metropolitan District No. 1 Outlot E 
	VI B -  Kinston - Richmond Alley-Load (Phase 2) - Lot Development Agreement
	VI C - McWhinney - Kinston - Supplement Dispute Resolution Covenant (ME 14, 16, and partial ME 15 KMD1 Annexation)
	VI D -McWhinney - Kinston - Quit Claim Deed (CED  to Kinston MD 1- ME 14, 16, and partial ME 15)
	VI F - Kinston Event Agreement Packet HEH06012023 



